
Page 1 of 2 

   

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

19C‐0363. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

19C‐0364. Roll Call 

19C‐0365. Establishment of Quorum 
19C‐0366. Pledge of Allegiance 
19C‐0367. Reports of Standing Committees 
19C‐0368. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None. 
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA19‐19 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

19C‐0369. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of August 26, 2019  

3‐8 

 
19C‐0370. 

  
Approval of a Request by the Galena Center for the Arts to Install Scarecrows in 
Public Spaces from September 16 through October 31 

9‐10 

 
19C‐0371. 

 
Approval of Budget Amendment BA20‐05 for Water Tower Elimination Study 
Engineering Fees and Old City Cemetery Improvements  

11‐12 

 
19C‐0372. 

  
Acceptance of July 2019 Financial Report 

‐‐ 

 
19C‐0373. 

 
Approval of a Contract with Geostar Mechanical for Backflow Prevention Device 
Inspection Services 

13 

 



Page 2 of 2 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. Sept. 11  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. Sept. 19  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Grant Park Committee  Fri. Sept. 20  9:00 A.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. Sept. 23  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Please view the full City of Galena Calendar at www.cityofgalena.org  

Posted: Thursday, September 5, 2019 at 4:00 p.m.    Posted By: 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

19C‐0357. 
 
Second Reading and Possible Approval of an Ordinance Amending the Municipal 
Code of the City of Galena by the Addition of Chapter 35.150 Imposing a 
Municipal Cannabis Retailers’ Occupation Tax 

 
14‐15  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

19C‐0374. 
  
Discussion and Possible Action on Zoning Calendar No. 19A‐03, an Application by 
Alan Trebian and Larry Aschebrook, 624 Spring Street, to Rezone from Low 
Density Residential to Neighborhood Commercial   

 
16‐23  

 
19C‐0375. 

 
Presentation by IIW Engineering of Franklin Street Water Tower Elimination 
Study  

 
24‐54 

 
19C‐0376. 

 
Warrants 

55‐60 

19C‐0377.  Alderpersons’ Comments   
19C‐0378.  City Administrator’s Report    
19C‐0379.  Mayor’s Report   
19C‐0380.  Adjournment   



Regular Board Meeting  26 August 2019 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 26 AUGUST 2019 
 

19C-0342 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 26 August 2019.  
 
19C-0343 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, 
Westemeier, Renner 
 
Absent:  McCoy 
 
19C-0344 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
19C-0345 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
19C-0346 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
19C-0347 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
Rose Noble, Committee Member, Christkindlemarket – Noble advised she is serving on the 
committee for the Christkindlemarket and would be available should the council have any 
questions.   
 
Matt Trotter, US Water – Trotter updated the council on the transition status.  Veolia has 
exhibited a lot of professionalism in helping with the transition.  They have shared information and 
access to things.  US Water has had a presence in Galena every day since July 30th.  They had 
five people in town for the first two weeks.  They worked on transferring computers and 
networking.  Since the 1st of August they have been working with employees.  They retained all 
onsite employees.  They have reviewed all policies and procedures and revised and changed 
where necessary.  They have been working on an extensive asset inventory and assessment 
which will be valuable in moving forward and defining the course of the contract.   
 
Jae Hezlep, Coatsworth Senior Center Resident, 126 S. Main Street – Hezlep advised she is 
present, along with her neighbors, on behalf of Coatsworth residents.  She urged the council to 
consider their request to change the two spaces in front of the Coatsworth to a loading zone 24 
hours per day, 7 days per week and to make the parking space to the north of the loading zone a 
handicapped parking space.  Hezlep advised there are currently no other handicapped parking 
spaces in this block.   
 
Resident, Coatsworth Senior Center, 126 S. Main Street – The resident spoke in support of 
their request to change the loading zone and add the handicapped stall.  
 
Cathy Carlson, Resident, Coatsworth Senior Center – Carlson advised she is legally blind.  
Her mother frequently picks her up and drops her off in the evening and on weekends in front of 
the Coatsworth.  Typically, her mother has to stop at the corner and partially block Washington 
Street where she is unable to leave her car to assist Carlson.  Carlson urged the Council to 
consider their request for the handicapped stall and loading zone changes.   
 

Page 3 of 60



Regular Board Meeting  26 August 2019 
 

Bill Fawell, 617 Ridge – Fawell urged the council to consider sending the Vacation Rental 
Ordinance back to staff to allow them to come up with something that can work all the way 
around.   
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn as the City Council and reconvene as the 
Liquor Commission.      
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0348 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AN APPLICATION FOR A CLASS M 
LIQUOR LICENSE BY MARK J. TIERNO FOR FARMERS GUEST HOUSE, INC., 334 SPRING 
STREET 

 
Motion:    Bernstein moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the application for a Class M 
Liquor License by Mark J. Tierno for Farmers Guest House, Inc., 334 Spring Street.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
Motion:     Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn as the Liquor Commission and 
reconvene as the City Council.      
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  

 
CONSENT AGENDA CA19-18 

 
19C-0349 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
AUGUST 12, 2019 
 
19C-0350 – APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT BA20-04 FOR GRANT PARK OVAL 
GARDEN CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES CARRIED OVER INTO CURRENT FISCAL YEAR 
 
19C-0351 – APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER #1 FOR THE GRANT PARK ADA PARKING 
PROJECT 
 
19C-0352 – APPROVAL OF BIDDING SINGLE AXLE DUMP TRUCK WITH PLOW, 
SPREADER AND DUMP BOX FOR PURCHASE IN FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 
 

Page 4 of 60



Regular Board Meeting  26 August 2019 
 

Motion:    Kieffer moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve Consent Agenda, CA19-18.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
19C-0334 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CHAPTER 112 OF THE GALENA CODE OF ORDINANCES SETTING LIMITS ON 
THE NUMBER OF LICENSES FOR VACATION RENTALS.  
 
Motion:    Allendorf moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the second reading of an Ordinance 
amending Chapter 112 of the Galena Code of Ordinances setting limits on the number of licenses 
for vacation rentals amended to allow future applicants to make Special Use Permit requests to 
claim the unfulfilled licenses of previous applicants who abandon or default on their requests.      
 
Discussion:  Renner noted staff needed clarification if council wished to allow future applicants 
to make Special Use Permit requests to claim the unfulfilled licenses of previous applicants who 
abandon or default on their request.  Oldenburg advised once the zoning is approved the 
applicant has 12 months to get up and running.   
 
Amended 
Motion:    Allendorf moved, seconded by Kieffer, to amend the motion to allow future applicants 
to make Special Use Permit requests to claim the unfilled licenses of previous applicants who 
abandon or default on their requests.   
 
Amended 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
Main 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
19C-0353 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY COATSWORTH 
BUILDING RESIDENTS TO MODIFY PARKING ZONES IN THE 100 BLOCK OF SOUTH MAIN 
STREET 
 
Motion:   Westemeier moved, seconded by Hahn, to postpone item 19C-0953, a request by 
Coatsworth building residents to modify parking zones in the 100 block of South Main Street to 
the September 23, 2019 meeting.   
 

Page 5 of 60



Regular Board Meeting  26 August 2019 
 

19C-0354 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST FROM 
VISITGALENA.ORG TO HOST CHRISTKINDLMARKET IN DEPOT PARK, FROM 
THANKSGIVING TO CHRISTMAS, 2021-2023 
 
A motion to approve died for lack of a second.   No further action taken.   
 
19C-0355 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A CONTRACT FOR THE PARKING 
EXPANSION PROJECT AT REC PARK 
 
The following bids were received: 
 

Contractor Base Bid Alternate Bid Total Bid
  
Civil Constructors $73,232 $3,400 $76,615
Louie’s Trenching Service $55,950 $   950 $56,900
MNS Construction $65,377 $3,000 $68,377
Wienen Landscaping $71,283 $5,760 $77,043

 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the contract for the parking 
expansion project at Rec Park with Louie’s Trenching Service in the amount of $56,900 
 
Discussion:  None.       
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0356 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON DRAFT ORDINANCE TO REGULATE 
ADULT-USE RECREATIONAL CANNABIS 
 
Motion:  Allendorf moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the draft ordinance to regulate adult-
use recreational cannabis.   
 
Discussion:  Zoning Administrator, Matt Oldenburg, showed a preliminary map created by the 
GIS Department showing the areas where a cannabis business would be allowed.  Businesses 
must be 250 feet from residentially zoned districts and must be 1,000 feet from a school and/or 
daycare facility.  With these criteria applied, it would open up the small area between Commerce 
Street and the levee as well as areas in Industrial Park that are zoned Heavy Industrial.  
Oldenburg explained, should the council with to move forward, he would initiate the text 
amendments to the Zoning Board in September and would work through the process.   
 
Oldenburg advised the County could create their own regulations to allow a cannabis business.  If 
rezoning were involved in the mile-and-one-half area it would require a super majority of the 
County Board to over-turn it.  
 
Bernstein questioned if the City could limit the number of facilities located within the City.  
Attorney Nack stated, with the distance restrictions and regulations in the State Statute, he feels it 
would take care of itself so limiting the number would not be necessary.   
 
Oldenburg explained a Cultivation Center can be an indoor facility or outdoor.  A Craft Grower 
would be an indoor facility.  Oldenburg advised we have a Limited Ag District on Donegan which 
would be far enough away from residences to have an outdoor facility.  The outdoor facility would 

Page 6 of 60



Regular Board Meeting  26 August 2019 
 

be required to have an extensive amount of security such as a fenced area with video cameras 
and full security.   
 
Oldenburg explained an Infuser Organization uses the diluted extract of the THC which is used 
for injecting such as in cooking and/or gummy bears.  The infused product is for the edible market 
and is very regulated.     
 
Renner questioned if the Council wished to allow all six types of operations in town or just the 
dispensary?  Nack stated there are plenty of restrictions based on a small town that are going to 
set limits.  If someone wants to try building a craft grower operation in Industrial Park, he feels it 
would provide good jobs and more revenues.  He sees no reason to restrict it to just dispensaries.  
Westemeier agreed.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer 
  NAYS:  Renner 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0357 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF 
THE CITY OF GALENA BY THE ADDITION OF CHAPTER 35.150 IMPOSING A MUNICIPAL 
CANNABIS RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve an ordinance amending the Municipal 
Code of the City of Galena by the addition of Chapter 35.150 imposing a Municipal Cannabis 
Retailers’ Occupation Tax, 19C-0357.     
 
Discussion:  None.      
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer 
  NAYS:  Renner 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0358 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the Warrants as presented, 19C-
0358.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0359 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Cannabis Ordinance – Allendorf thanked staff for the cannabis ordinance.  He echoed what 
fellow members have said that it is going to be here no matter what so we may as well get the tax 
benefits.   
 
Air B & B – Allendorf stated we don’t really understand the effects of the Air B & B’s.  The City 
can review it in a year.   
 

Page 7 of 60



Regular Board Meeting  26 August 2019 
 

Construction Trailers – Westemeier feels the City needs to look into what can be done with 
construction trailers/trucks taking up parking stalls for weeks at a time.  He recommends they be 
required to move them on Friday and be brought back on Monday.    Kieffer agreed.   
 
Public Works – Bernstein advised there was a dead deer in the Old City Cemetery.  Public 
Works was called, and it was removed within a couple hours.  Bernstein thanked Public Works for 
their fast action.   
 
Mowing/Old City Cemetery – Bernstein stated, while Dale Glick commends the Public Works 
Department for the job they do in the cemetery, he sees a problem with the equipment not being 
able to get close to headstones.  There is a lot of grass growing up around the headstones and a 
weed wacker cannot be used.  He suggested having a landscaper go up there three times in the 
season to mow around the headstones.  Bernstein questioned if the City could afford to do that or 
put it in the budget for next year.   
 
Coatsworth – Bernstein stated she hopes the City can come to some sort of solution for the 
people at Coatsworth as it is a hardship for them.   
 
Hospital Turn Lanes – Hahn reported they are hoping to have the turn lanes started in the 
Spring.  The plans have been submitted to the state and approved.  They are meeting with 
Representative Chesney next week and Congresswoman Bustos the next week.  The project is 
estimated to be $2.5 million.  Hahn stated he would like to see the City do what we can to support 
the push for the State.  In the original concept, the state was going to fund it.   
 
19C-0360 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Audit – Moran reported the Audit has been completed and he is waiting for the final draft.   
 
Street Paving – Street paving will begin in two weeks.  Residents have been notified by letter.   
 
19C-0361 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner agreed with the comments made stating we will keep plugging away at the wish 
list.  He thanked staff for the ordinance and the hard work.   
 
19C-0362 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Westemeier moved, seconded by Hahn to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 
 
 

Page 8 of 60



Page 9 of 60



Page 10 of 60



City of Galena, Illinois

Budget Amendment No. 20‐05  

Fiscal Year 2019‐20  

Item No. Line Item Title Line Item No. Beginning Balance  Increase            Decrease     
Ending          

Balance

1 Water Tower Site Improvement (Tower Elimination Study) 51.42.831.0 $                                  5,000  $                                 10,300  $              15,300 

2 Cemetery Park  17.52.870.05 $                                        ‐    $                                   3,840  $                3,840 

Justification:
Item No.    Description

1

2

Effect of Budget Amendment on Budget:

Approved Budget After Budget After
Budget Previous Amendments Proposed Amendment
4,015,455$           4,015,455$                           4,015,455$                            
4,000,630$           4,000,630$                           4,000,630$                            

14,825$                14,825$                                14,825$                                  

5,621,560$           5,700,060$                           5,700,060$                            
5,416,895$           5,709,745$                           5,723,885$                            

204,665$              (9,685)$                                 (23,825)$                                

219,490$               5,140$                                   (9,000)$                                  

Approved by City Council on ____________________

Donations were received last fiscal year totaling $5,970 to support the maintenance and improvement of the Old City Cemetery.  Volunteer, Dale Glick, has coordinated the effort 

to restore and beautify the property.  One of the projects being undertaken is the fabrication and installation of a historically accurate metal fence that will encircle gravesites.  

The cost of fabrication was $3,840 and payment is now due to the fabricator, Ja‐Mar Pattern, Inc.  The proposed budget amendment adds $3,840 to the Parks Fund budget to 

cover the expense.  If the amendment is approved, the Parks Fund would have a budgeted deficit of $12,900.  Any year‐end deficit of the Parks Fund must be made whole by the 

General Fund.  The total fiscal year budget (all funds) would have a budgeted deficit of $9,000 if both the two proposed budget amendments are approved. 

Other Fund Surplus/(Deficit)

Total Budget Surplus/(Deficit)

The proposed budget amendment is for additional engineering fees for the Water Tower Elimination Study performed by IIW Engineers. The original contract amount for 

engineering services (Phase II – Alternatives Analysis and Water System Modeling) was $35,400.  As of today, $38,900 has been invoiced.  IIW has incurred  a total cost of $46,168 

and anticipates another $2,500 of costs.  The total cost would be $50,688 which is $11,768 more than invoiced to‐date.  This amendment would add $10,300 to the project 

expense line item in the Water Fund to cover all expected costs.  If the amendment is approved, the Water Fund would have a budgeted deficit of $13,285 for the fiscal year and 

a projected fiscal year‐end fund balance of $580,700.  

Mark Moran

Budget Officer

Fund
General Fund Revenues
General Fund Expenses

General Surplus/(Deficit)

Other Fund Revenues
Other Fund Expenses 

Page 11 of 60



City of Galena, Illinois

Summary of Budget Amendments

Fiscal Year 2019‐2020

Date Line Item Title Line Item No.
Beginning 

Balance
 Increase          Decrease

Ending         

Balance

Amendment 

Number 

Reference 

Number1

07‐08‐19 Dog Park Donations  17.383.8  $                        ‐     $                   ‐     $                   ‐    BA20‐01  

07‐08‐19 Dog Park Construction 17.52.890.01 ‐$                       ‐$                  ‐$                  BA20‐01  

07‐22‐19 Water Sampling Grant (Revenue) 52.389.1  $                        ‐    $           28,500   $           28,500  BA20‐02

07‐22‐19 Water Sampling Grant (Expense) 52.43.549.02  $                        ‐    $           28,500   $           28,500  BA20‐02

07‐22‐19 Gear Street Water Main 51.42.836.07  $                        ‐    $           92,290   $           92,290  BA20‐02

07‐22‐19 Gear Street Sewer Main 52.43.850.16  $                        ‐    $         113,000   $         113,000  BA20‐02

08‐12‐19 Rec Park Parking Grant 17.349.3  $                        ‐    $           50,000   $           50,000  BA20‐03

08‐12‐19 Rec Park Parking Grant 17.52.870.05  $                        ‐    $           50,000   $           50,000  BA20‐03

08‐26‐19 Galena Foundation Project 17.52.890.00  $                14,500   $             9,060   $           23,560  BA20‐04

09‐09‐19 Water Tower Site Improvement (Tower Elimination Study) 51.42.831.0  $                  5,000   $           10,300   $           15,300  BA20‐05

09‐09‐19 Cemetery Park 17.52.870.05  $                        ‐    $             3,840   $             3,840  BA20‐05

1  Reference Number confirms that the budget amendment has been updated to the General Ledger.

Updated: 9/5/2019

Page 12 of 60



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council & Mark Moran 
 
FROM:    Jonathan Miller, Building Official     
 
DATE:    September 3, 2019                             
 
RE:     2019 Back‐Flow Prevention Device (BFPD) Inspection Bids 
 
The Illinois EPA requires the City of Galena to oversee a Cross‐Connection Control Device (CCCD) inspection 
program.  The program’s purpose is to protect the public water supply system from contamination or pollution by 
isolating contaminants or pollutants from the customer’s water system.  To comply with the regulations of the 
Illinois EPA, all back‐flow systems in Galena must be tested annually by an Illinois State licensed plumber who is 
also a Certified Cross‐Connection Control Device Inspector (CCCCDI).  The inspection of these devices includes 
physical testing to assure satisfactory operation.  The City of Galena currently inspects approximately 125‐130 
backflow devices at a fee of $100 to the property owner.    
 
On July 18, 2019, letters were sent out to qualified Illinois Licensed Plumbing Contractors with a Cross‐Connection 
Control Device Inspection Certification.  We requested sealed bids for the upcoming BFPD Inspections.   On 
September 3, 2019 at 10:00 a.m., a public bid opening was conducted at City Hall with three (3) companies 
responding as follows: 
 
                                           Cost/Device 

Geostar Mechanical      $38.50 
 

Nelson‐Carlson Mechanical Contr.  $53.00 
 
Mechanical, Inc       $70.00 

 
 
Based on the bids received, I recommend that Geostar Mechanical be contracted at $38.50/device to conduct our 
BFPD inspections for the 2019 inspection year.  Geostar Mechanical conducted the inspection program in 2018, and 
after testing was completed, provided the proper documentation as required by the Illinois Dept. of Public Health.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 13 of 60



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF GALENA BY THE ADDITION 
OF CHAPTER 35.150 IMPOSING A MUNICIPAL CANNABIS RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Galena has the authority to adopt ordinances and to promulgate 

rules and regulations that pertain to its government and affairs and that protect the public 
health, safety and welfare of its citizens; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Municipal 
Cannabis Retailers’ Occupation Tax Law, 65 ILCS 5/11‐8‐22 et seq. (Act); and 
 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is intended to impose the tax authorized by the Act providing 
for a municipal cannabis retailers’ occupation tax which will be collected by the Illinois 
Department of Revenue; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena as follows: 
 

SECTION I. Recitals. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION II. Adoption of Tax. Chapter 35 of the City of Galena Code of Ordinances shall 
be amended by the addition of Chapter 35.150 that will read as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 35.150 MUNICIPAL CANNABIS RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX. 
 

35.151. TAX IMPOSED; RATE. 
 

(A) A tax is hereby imposed upon all persons engaged in the business of selling 
cannabis, other than cannabis purchased under the Compassionate Use of Medical 
Cannabis Pilot Program Act, at retail in the City of Galena at the rate of three‐percent 
(3.0%) of the gross receipts from these sales made in the course of that business. 
 

(B) The imposition of this tax is in accordance with the provisions of Sections 8‐
11‐22, of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8‐11‐22). 
 
35.152. COLLECTION OF TAX BY RETAILERS. 
 

(A) The tax imposed by this Ordinance shall be remitted by such retailer to the 
Illinois Department of Revenue (Department). Any tax required to be collected pursuant 
to or as authorized by this Ordinance and any such tax collected by such retailer and 
required to be remitted to the Department shall constitute a debt owed by the retailer 
to the State.  Retailers may reimburse themselves for their seller's tax liability hereunder 

Page 14 of 60



2 
 

by separately stating that tax as an additional charge, which charge may be stated in 
combination, in a single amount, with any State tax that sellers are required to collect. 
 

(B) The taxes hereby imposed, and all civil penalties that may be assessed as an 
incident thereto, shall be collected and enforced by the Department. The Department 
shall have full power to administer and enforce the provisions of this article. 

 
SECTION III. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance, or the application of any provision 
of this Ordinance, is held unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such occurrence shall not affect 
other provisions of this Ordinance, or their application, that can be given effect without the 
unconstitutional or invalid provision or its application. Each unconstitutional or invalid 
provision, or application of such provision, is severable, unless otherwise provided by this 
Ordinance. 
 
SECTION IV. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval and publication as required by law, provided, however, that the tax 
provided for herein shall take effect for all sales on or after the first day of January 2020. Copies 
of this Ordinance shall be certified and sent to the Illinois Department of Revenue prior to 
September 30, 2019. 
 
SECTION VII:  Passed on this ___ day of _______________, A.D., 2019, in open Council. 
 
       
AYES:          NAYS:  
 
ABSTENTIONS:      ABSENT: 

                      
                     
                                            ____________________________________ 

TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________________ 
MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 

Page 15 of 60



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                               101 Green Street · P.O. Box 310 · Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050     •     Facsimile: 815-777-3083     •     www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Mayor Renner, City Council & City Administrator 

FROM:  Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  September 3, 2019 

RE: Cal. No. 19A-03, 19S-11 & 19S-12, Applicant: Alan Trebian, 3379 S. Girot Road, Hanover, 
IL 61041 and Owner: Larry Aschebrook, 624 Spring Street, Galena, IL 61036.  Location: 
Parcel: 22-101-016-00, N Part of E ½ of Lot 1, N Part of W 180’ of Lot 2, Lots 1, 2 and N 
17’ of Lot 3 in the Subdivision of the West ½ of Lot 1, Block 59, Original Lots of Galena, 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.  Common Address is 624 Spring Street, Galena, IL 
61036.  Request for Rezoning from Low Density Residential District to Neighborhood 
Commercial District; Special Use Permit for Accommodations, Vacation Rental in 
Neighborhood Commercial District; Special Use Permit for Removable Outdoor Display in 
Neighborhood Commercial District.  

Summary: 
 

The applicant is requesting a map amendment and Special Use Permits to rezone from Low Density 
Residential to Neighborhood Commercial to facilitate the use of the existing barn as a produce / farmer 
market, including Indoor Sales & Service and Removable Outdoor Display land uses and to operate the 
house as a one-dwelling unit vacation rental in a Neighborhood Commercial District, contingent upon 
approval of rezoning. 
 
The applicant is employed by the property owner as caretaker.  The single-family dwelling on the property 
recently underwent a full rehabilitation and addition and is suitable for a vacation rental when the owner is 
not using it personally.  The owner also has a farm near Galena and wishes to sell some of their produce 
out of the barn, along with some removable outdoor display racks against the barn structure.   
 
The vacation rental and removable outdoor display uses require a Special Use Permit in the Neighborhood 
Commercial district.  The Indoor Sales & Service land use is allowed by right in the NC district. 
 
The applicant proposes to operate the produce market only during daytime hours.  There is adequate parking 
space available adjacent to the barn area on the North side, which the owner will construct a parking area 
suitable for the market use when they are ready to proceed.  Adequate parking for the vacation rental 
currently exists for three vehicles on the driveway and slab between the house and barn. 
 
A site plan review of the proposed request has been conducted per the criteria listed in §154.914. Aside 
from the barn parking area, all exterior development is existing and no further development is needed.   
 
Number of Guests:  Vacation Rental: Maximum occupancy load for this dwelling unit is nine (9) guests.  
This is determined by the International Fire Code, International Building Code and NFPA on the basis of 
minimum 200 square feet per person gross (IFC Table 1004.1.2), with an additional requirement for two 
means of fire-protected egress for each sleeping area (NFPA 24.2.2.1.1).    
 
Lot Capacity:  The lot size is 38,445 square feet, or 0.88 acres.  The structure is situated along Spring Street 
and the unimproved South Division Street ROW.  The site is already properly landscaped with well-

Page 16 of 60



2 of 3 

established vegetation and lighting.  The lot can absorb the impact of this land use with minimal impact on 
surrounding properties. 
 
Availability and impact of parking:  The proposed off-street parking can accommodate up to three vehicles.  
The parking regulations require one (1) off-street space per four (4) guests for a vacation rental use, a total 
of three (3) spaces are needed.  The market use requires three (3) additional spaces, which are available to 
the North of the Barn, yet to be installed.  
 
Emergency measures:  Staff will ensure that emergency lighting, exits, posted floor plans and emergency 
telephone are in place before license is issued for the vacation rental. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this request.  Land uses surrounding the property include other 
Neighborhood Commercial, office and residential. 
 
At their meeting on August 14, 2019, the Zoning Board of Appeals voted to send a positive recommendation 
to the City Council to rezone the proposed property from Low Density Residential to Neighborhood 
Commercial district.  The ZBA also approved the Special Use Permit requests for Accommodations, 
Vacation Rental and Removable Outdoor Display conditionally upon approval by Council on the Rezoning 
request. 
 
Approval Criteria & Recommendation for Map Amendment: 
 
In order to maintain internal consistency within this code and on the zoning map, proposed amendments to 
the text and zoning map must be consistent with the purposes stated herein. 

In determining whether the proposed amendment shall be approved, the following factors shall be 
considered: 

               (1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption;   

               (2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, development 
transitions, etc.;  

               (3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 
characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the capacity or 
safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, or environmental 
impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise 
pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;   

               (4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation of 
the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, intents and 
requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines;   

               (5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 
concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone;  

               (6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or 

Page 17 of 60



3 of 3 

               (7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 
benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.   

The Zoning Administrator and Zoning Board of Appeals shall make recommendations and the City 
Council shall take final action. 

          (1)     When the Zoning Board of Appeals or City Council deems it necessary or expedient, 
additional property in the zoning district may be considered for a zoning change provided that this 
additional property is also addressed in the public hearing notice, in accordance with § 154.919(F). 

          (2)     In the event of a written protest against a proposed amendment signed and 
acknowledged by the owners of 20% of the frontage proposed to be altered or by the owners of 
20% of the frontage immediately adjoining or across the alley or rear line therefrom or by the 
owners of 20% of the frontage directly opposite the frontage proposed to be altered as to such 
regulations or zoning district and field with the City Clerk, such amendment shall not be passed 
except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all of the selected members of the City Council. 

Page 18 of 60



Cal. No. 19A-03 1 
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

DETERMINATION & RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
REGARDING 

 
CALENDAR NUMBER:  Cal. No. 19A-03 
 
APPLICATION BY: Alan Trebian / Larry Aschebrook, 624 Spring Street, Galena, 

IL 61036 
 
FOR: Request for Rezoning from Low Density Residential to 

Neighborhood Commercial district to allow 
Accommodations, Vacation Rental, Indoor Sales & Service 
and Removable Outdoor Display. 

PROCEDURES 
 
Pursuant to law, a public hearing was held by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals regarding this 
matter on August 14, 2019.  The hearing was advertised in an edition of the Galena Gazette, in a 
quarter-page sized ad, that was available to the general public between 15 and 30 days prior to the 
hearing.  They were invited to testify if they so desired.  A quorum of the Board was present at the 
hearing in which the subject application and materials were reviewed and all persons were heard 
who desired to testify. 
 
NATURE OF APPLICATION 
 
The applicant is requesting a map amendment and Special Use Permits to rezone from Low 
Density Residential to Neighborhood Commercial to facilitate the use of the existing barn as a 
produce / farmer market, including Indoor Sales & Service and Removable Outdoor Display land 
uses and to operate the house as a one-dwelling unit vacation rental in a Neighborhood Commercial 
District, contingent upon approval of rezoning. 
 
The applicant is employed by the property owner as caretaker.  The single-family dwelling on the 
property recently underwent a full rehabilitation and addition and is suitable for a vacation rental 
when the owner is not using it personally.  The owner also has a farm near Galena and wishes to 
sell some of their produce out of the barn, along with some removable outdoor display racks 
against the barn structure.   
 
The vacation rental and removable outdoor display uses require a Special Use Permit in the 
Neighborhood Commercial district.  The Indoor Sales & Service land use is allowed by right in 
the NC district. 
 

Page 19 of 60



Cal. No. 19A-03 2 
 

The applicant proposes to operate the produce market only during daytime hours.  There is 
adequate parking space available adjacent to the barn area on the North side, which the owner will 
construct a parking area suitable for the market use when they are ready to proceed.  Adequate 
parking for the vacation rental currently exists for three vehicles on the driveway and slab between 
the house and barn. 
 
A site plan review of the proposed request has been conducted per the criteria listed in §154.914. 
Aside from the barn parking area, all exterior development is existing and no further development 
is needed.   
 
Number of Guests:  Vacation Rental: Maximum occupancy load for this dwelling unit is nine (9) 
guests.  This is determined by the International Fire Code, International Building Code and NFPA 
on the basis of minimum 200 square feet per person gross (IFC Table 1004.1.2), with an additional 
requirement for two means of fire-protected egress for each sleeping area (NFPA 24.2.2.1.1).    
 
Lot Capacity:  The lot size is 38,445 square feet, or 0.88 acres.  The structure is situated along 
Spring Street and the unimproved South Division Street ROW.  The site is already properly 
landscaped with well-established vegetation and lighting.  The lot can absorb the impact of this 
land use with minimal impact on surrounding properties. 
 
Availability and impact of parking:  The proposed off-street parking can accommodate up to three 
vehicles.  The parking regulations require one (1) off-street space per four (4) guests for a vacation 
rental use, a total of three (3) spaces are needed.  The market use requires three (3) additional 
spaces, which are available to the North of the Barn, yet to be installed.  
 
Emergency measures:  Staff will ensure that emergency lighting, exits, posted floor plans and 
emergency telephone are in place before license is issued for the vacation rental. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this request.  Land uses surrounding the property include other 
Neighborhood Commercial, office and residential. 
 
Testimony Presented on Behalf of the Applicant: 
 
§ Adam Johnson, 211 Fourth Street, Galena said the new owners are looking at a commercial 

use for the property and have an idea to use the barn for farm produce sales with some 
removable outdoor display.    The house would be used for vacation rental and to accomplish 
all this they would like a zoning change to Neighborhood Commercial.  This area is a mix of 
business and residential so Neighborhood Commercial would be compatible with the 
surrounding properties.  The business would provide new opportunities for businesses and 
tourism and would be a good development for the city.     

 
Baranski asked about the removable outdoor display.  Johnson asked Alan Trebian to answer.   

 
§ Alan Trebian, 3379 South Girot Road, Hanover said nothing has been decided but they 

would most likely have a farmer’s market-type business and would want something like a 

Page 20 of 60



Cal. No. 19A-03 3 
 

produce cart which could be wheeled out of the barn when they were open.  At some point 
they would need some signage.        

 
Oldenburg said any signage would have to approved. 

 
Baranski asked about the parking. 
 
Oldenburg said there were three additional spaces shown. 

 
Johnson said the three spaces on the east side of the barn and would be used for the vacation 
rental.    Parking for the barn would be on the West side of the barn and will come after 
redevelopment of Highway 20.  There will be about twelve spaces for the approximately 1400 
square foot building.   

 
Baranski said parking for the barn would have to be developed before they could use the space.  
How soon are they planning on opening?     

 
Trebian said there really are no immediate plans to open – nothing this year.  A lot of this will 
depend on the Highway 20 work.   

 
Oldenburg said before they are given an occupancy permit for the business use, they would 
have to satisfy the parking requirements.    

 
Testimony Presented in Opposition to the Request: 
 
No one spoke in opposition to the request. 
 
APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
§ Article 0, Section 154.005 through 154.008 sets forth the Purpose, Separability and  

Non-Liability, Abrogation and Rules of Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance. 
§ Article 2, Section 154.201(C)(3) provides a definition and description of the Neighborhood 

Commercial District. 
§ Article 2, Table 154.204.1 lists the Bulk Standards for Nonresidential Structures. 
§ Article 2, Table 154.208.1 lists the Intensity Standards for Nonresidential uses. 
§ Article 4, Table 154.403.1 lists the land uses permitted by right or by special uses for each 

zoning district. 
§ Article 6, Section 154.601 sets forth the off-street parking standards. 
§ Article 6, Section 154.605 sets forth the landscape and bufferyard standards. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.918 and Table 154.918.1 set forth the procedure for Required Non-

Administrative Development Review. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.919 lists and describes the Non-Administrative Development Review 

Common Elements of Procedure. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.920 sets forth the purpose, applicability, approval criteria, decision-

maker, and application and review procedures for Rezoning. 
 

Page 21 of 60



Cal. No. 19A-03 4 
 

DETERMINATION 
 
Based upon the facts in this case, the Zoning Board of Appeals does find and conclude that the 
request by Alan Trebian / Larry Aschebrook to rezone 624 Spring Street to Neighborhood 
Commercial to allow Accommodations, Vacation Rental, Indoor Sales & Service and Removable 
Outdoor Display should be approved for the following reasons: 
 

1. Neighborhood Commercial is a perfect fit for this transitional corridor.  This zoning comes 
with plenty of restrictions.   
 

Zoning Map Amendment - In determining whether the proposed zoning map amendment 
shall be approved, the following factors shall be considered: 

1. Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption; 
N/A. 
 

2. Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, 
development transitions, etc.; The character of this area has changed and evolved. 

 
3. Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 

characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts 
on the capacity or safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, 
parking problems, or environmental impacts that the new zone may generate such as 
excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, 
or other nuisances; The proposed uses are compatible and the rezoning should not have 
any adverse impacts on the area. 

 
4. Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation 

of the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the 
policies, intents and requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines; 
This proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, especially as it supports the 
tourism industry. 

 
5. Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 

concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; N/A 
 

6. Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or There is 
an adequate supply of land available for this request. 

 
7. Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 

benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning. There is a need 
and the community will benefit. 

 
 

Page 22 of 60



Cal. No. 19A-03 5 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that this Zoning Board of Appeals does recommend to 
the City Council of the City of Galena that this request by Alan Trebian / Larry Aschebrook to 
rezone 624 Spring Street to Neighborhood Commercial to allow Accommodations, Vacation 
Rental, Indoor Sales & Service and Removable Outdoor Display should be approved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 14th day of August, A.D. 2019, by the Galena Zoning Board of 
Appeals by a vote of 5 ayes, 0 nays, 2 absent, 0 abstain, 0 recused. 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      John Rosenthal, Chairperson 
 

Page 23 of 60



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:      Andy Lewis, City Engineer      
         
DATE:      3 September 2019 
 
RE:      Well #5 Water Tower Elimination Study 

 
During the past several months IIW Engineers have been working on the water tower elimination study. 
They have conducted an extensive study of existing conditions of the water system, collating data from 
previous water system improvements and completing field investigations of pressure reduction stations, 
watermains, valves and hydrants. Also, flow testing at various hydrants locations throughout the city. 
This information was used to construct a digital hydraulic model of the entire water system. Not only 
can this model be used for this project but can also be used to model any future developments in the 
city. 
 
At Monday night’s council meeting staff from IIW Engineers will present the results of their study (see 
attached) and be available for questions. A decision to move forward with this project will be made at a 
later date once sources of possible funding are identified.

Page 24 of 60



IIW, P.C. 
www.iiwengr.com 

 
4155 Pennsylvania Avenue  
Dubuque, IA 52002-2628  
(563) 556-2464 | (800) 556-4491 (Voice) 
(563) 556-7811 (Fax) 

1151 Badger Road 
Hazel Green, WI 53811 
(608) 748-4308 (Voice) 
(563) 556-7811 (Fax) 

101 Seventh Ave. South, Ste 200 
St. Cloud, MN 56301 
(320) 230-0840 | (800) 556-4491 (Voice) 
(320) 529-8989 (Fax) 
 

127 A West 76th St. 
Davenport, IA 52806 

(563) 823-0192 (Voice) 
(563) 823-0195 (Fax) 

 

gcostello@clintoncoungy-ia.gov 
I N T E G R I T Y .  E X P E R T I S E .  S O L U T I O N S .  

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Andy Lewis and Matt Oldenburg 

From: Marc Ruden and Bryson Winsky 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Subject: 

Distribution System Model Results Memo  

City of Galena 

Franklin Street Tower Removal Hydraulic Analysis 

IIW Project No.: 15038 

 

Introduction 

Background 
This memo is Phase II of a two part study that is analyzing the elimination of the Franklin Street Water Tower in 
Galena, Illinois. Phase I, completed September, 5, 2018, assessed whether the City had enough storage without 
the Franklin Street Water Tower. The study found that the remaining storage facilities had enough storage 
volume.  Therefore, Phase II was commenced to study the hydraulics of the water system if the Franklin Street 
Water Tower is eliminated.  

Purpose 
The purpose of this Memo is to analyze the effects of eliminating the Franklin Street Water Tower in the West 
Pressure Zone (WPZ) with respect to pressure, fire flow, and cost. The hydraulic analysis was performed using a 
city-wide hydraulic model. The analysis will show the effects of eliminating the Franklin Street Water Tower 
under both normal and fire flow conditions. Furthermore, the hydraulic model can be used in the future to study 
other changes to the water distribution system.  

Scope 
The scope of this Memo includes the following items: 
- Review existing water system 
- Develop design criteria based on Illinois EPA regulatory requirements and 10 State Standards for pressure and 

fire flow  
- Analyze the existing pressures and fire flow in the Industrial Pressure Zone (IPZ) and WPZ 
- Analyze the pressures and fire flow with the Franklin Street Tower eliminated 
- Provide recommendation whether or not tower should be removed 

Existing Distribution System 

Galena’s water system is made up of four pressure zones. A pressure zone is an area of service supplied by a 
storage tank, pump station or control valve whereby an established minimum and maximum pressure range can be 
maintained. The four pressure zones are the East Pressure Zone (EPZ), Low Pressure Zone (LPZ), West Pressure 

Page 25 of 60

http://www.iiwengr.com/


 
 

2 
 

Zone (WPZ) and Industrial Pressure Zone (IPZ)). Zones are separated by booster pump stations, closed valves, 
pressure reducing valves, and check valves. This study focuses primarily on the WPZ and IPZ. Exhibit A is a map 
of the Existing Water System showing the existing pressure zone boundaries. 

Industrial Pressure Zone 

The IPZ serves the northwestern portion of Galena. It shares a boundary with the WPZ. The zones are connected 
by a single 10-in water main along Highway 20. The pressure zones are separated at the Industrial Park Booster 
Pump Station (BPS) located along Highway 20 and Exchange Street.  

Source 

Well No. 7 is located on the west side of Technical Drive north of the intersection with Dandar Street. The well 
and pump house were constructed in 2005. The pump is a vertical turbine pump with a submersible motor and is 
rated at 1,150 gpm at 480 ft TDH. The well includes a pitless adaptor and sends flow to the pump house for flow 
measurement and treatment. Water supplied from Well No. 7 feeds the IPZ. 

Storage 

The Industrial Park Water Tower is located on the west side of Technical Drive north of the intersection with 
Dandar Street directly adjacent to Well No. 7. The operating range of water elevations in the tower is 960 to 1,000 
ft. The total storage volume is 500,000 gal.  

The water tower is in the IPZ and is the only storage in this zone. The primary source of water for the water tower 
is Well No. 7.  Well No. 7 fills the Industrial Water Tower. A secondary source of water into the Industrial 
Pressure Zone is from the WPZ via the Industrial Pump Station. Water operators have indicated the pump station 
has not run since before 2007. 

Pump Station 

The Industrial Park BPS is located east of Highway 20 north of the intersection with Franklin Street. The station 
includes three pumps rated at 36, 65, and 940 gpm, respectively. The station boosts the pressure of water from a 
10-in main in the WPZ to enter the IPZ. Control of the pumps is based on water pressure sensed in the IPZ. City 
staff has indicated that the pumps in the Industrial Pump Station have not been turned on at least prior to 2007. 

Pressure Reducing Valves 

A PRV located in the Industrial Park BPS allows water to flow from the IPZ to the WPZ when the pressure falls 
below the PRV set point in the WPZ.  Currently, the PRV is out of service and is in the process of being repaired. 

West Pressure Zone 
The WPZ is supplied by water through Well Nos. 5 and 6. Pressure is controlled at the Franklin Street Water 
Tower. The WPZ is bounded to the west by the Industrial Park BPS and to the east by the LPZ. The WPZ and 
LPZ boundary generally follows Dodge Street and is separated with the use of isolation valves, pressure reducing 
valves, and an altitude valve that allows the WPZ to fill the Dodge Street Standpipe. The functionality of PRVs, 
and altitude valve is unknown. For this study, it is assumed that none of them are operating and the zones are 
separated by closed valves at their locations. System operators indicated that a valve is partially opened at the 
intersection of Jackson Street and North High Street to allow flow to the LPZ to fill the Dodge Street Standpipe.   

Source 

Well No. 5 is located on Franklin Street near the intersection with Highway 20. The well and pump house are 
adjacent to the elevated water storage tower at the high school. The well was drilled in 1963. In 1999, the vertical 
turbine pump was replaced with a new submersible motor-driven pump. In 2005, a new pump house was 
constructed, a pitless adaptor was installed at the well, and the pump was lowered to a new setting depth to 
provide greater reliability. The pump at Well No. 5 is rated at 900 gpm at 488 ft TDH and is driven by a 150 Hp 
motor. Water supplied from Well No. 5 feeds the WPZ. 

Page 26 of 60



 
 

3 
 

Well No. 6 is located on the south side of Gear Street just west of the intersection with Ferry Landing Road. A 
new vertical turbine pump was installed in 2016. The pump is rated for 1,000 gpm at 490 ft of head and is driven 
by a 200 Hp motor.  Well No. 6 operates based on the level of water in the Franklin Street Water Tower. 

 Storage 

The Franklin Street Water Tower is located on Franklin Street near the intersection with Highway 20 directly 
adjacent to Well No. 5. The operating range of water elevations in the tower is 914 to 935 ft. The total storage 
volume is 450,000 gal. 

The water tower is the only storage in this zone. Supply for the water tower comes from Well No. 5 and a 10-in 
water main that delivers flow from Well No. 6.  Normally only one well operates at a time based on the operators 
control settings. 

Pump Station 

The Industrial Park BPS pumps out of the WPZ. The BPS has not operated since before 2007. 

Zone Boundaries 

The pressure boundary between the WPZ and LPZ consists of a series of closed valves, and pressure reducing 
valves. The majority of the PRV stations are not functioning. Table 1 below is a list of the PRVs and closed 
valves that separate the zones. 
  

Page 27 of 60



 
 

4 
 

Table 1. WPZ Zone Boundaries 

Valve Type Location 
Zones 

Separated 
Size Main Status 

Altitude Valve Dodge St Standpipe LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Inactive 

Isolation Valve S West St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Closed 

Isolation Valve Gear St & S High St LPZ & 
WPZ 10" S. High St. Closed 

Isolation Valve Green St & S Prospect St LPZ & 
WPZ 10" & 8" Closed 

Isolation Valve Green St & S West St LPZ & 
WPZ 8" Closed 

Isolation Valve Franklin St & N Dodge St LPZ & 
WPZ 4" Closed 

Isolation Valve N Jackson St & N High St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Partially Open 

PRV Gear St & S West St LPZ & 
WPZ 10" Inactive - 

Bypassed 

PRV HWY 20 & Spring St LPZ & 
WPZ 8" Inactive - Isolated 

PRV S West St & Washington St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Inactive - 

Bypassed 

PRV S Dodge St & Washington St LPZ & 
WPZ 4" Inactive - 

Bypassed 

PRV S Dodge St & Wight St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Inactive - Isolated 

PRV Green St & S High St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Inactive - Isolated 

PRV S Dodge St & Hill St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Inactive - Isolated 

PRV Elk St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Inactive - Isolated 

PRV Franklin St & N Dodge St LPZ & 
WPZ 8" Inactive - Isolated 

PRV N High St & N Dodge St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Inactive - 

Bypassed 

PRV Industrial Park Pump Station IPZ & 
WPZ 10" Inactive  

PRV Ext. of Clay St & N Hickory 
St 

LPZ & 
WPZ 8" Inactive - Isolated 

PRV Green St & S Prospect St LPZ & 
WPZ 6" Inactive - Isolated 

 
  

Page 28 of 60



 
 

5 
 

Hydraulic Analysis 

The following three hydraulic conditions are typically considered when analyzing water distribution systems and 
were used in the modeled scenarios. 
 
A. Static Condition: This condition is when there are no demands within the system. This represents night time 

conditions. Low pressures during static conditions usually indicate service to high elevations. Typically, it is 
desirable to have static pressures between 60-80 psi. However, where large elevation differences within 
service areas occur this range can increase to 40-100 psi. 

 
B. Peak Hour Demand (PHD) Conditions: Peak Hour Demand Conditions is equivalent to peak instantaneous 

flow experienced in the distribution system. This is considered to be the highest demand within the 
distribution system each day. It commonly occurs in the morning when a large portion of customers 
simultaneously use water (flushing toilets, showering, etc.). The recommended minimum pressure during this 
condition is 35 psi.  

 
C. Fire Flow Plus Max Day Demand (MDD) Conditions (20 psi constraint): This condition looks at the available 

fire flow at a hydrant while maintaining a minimum pressure of 20 psi throughout the distribution system 
during max day demand. Illinois EPA requires pressures to be above 20 psi under all hydraulic conditions. 

Standard Design Criteria 
This section provides a summary of the criteria used to evaluate the existing system and proposed distribution 
system alternatives. 

Pressure Criteria 

- IL Administrative Code 
o Distribution systems shall be designed to maintain a minimum pressure of 20 psi measured at the 

ground surface in all parts of the system under fire-fighting demand or other similar emergency 

operating conditions. 
 

- Ten State Standards 
o The maximum variation between high and low levels in storage structures providing pressure to a 

distribution system should not exceed 30 feet. The minimum working pressure in the distribution 

system should be 35 psi and the normal working pressure should be approximately 60 to 80 psi. When 

static pressures exceed 100 psi, pressure reducing devices shall be provided on mains or as part of 

the meter setting on individual service lines in the distribution system. 

 

Fire Flow Criteria 

Recommended fire flows are based on construction type, density, and other factors set by the International Fire 
Code. For the purposes of this hydraulic analysis, the typical, minimum fire flow rates were used.  
 
 Single family residential 500-1,500 gpm 
 Multi-Family residential  2,500 gpm 
 Commercial/Business  2,500 gpm 
 Industrial/Schools/Hospitals 3,500 gpm 

Existing System 
The existing system was analyzed with the hydraulic model without any improvements. Table 2, Table 3, and 
Table 4 are summaries of the results for the existing system under static conditions, PHD conditions, and Fire 
Flow conditions, respectively. Exhibits for each hydraulic condition can be found in Appendix A.   

Page 29 of 60



 
 

6 
 

Table 2. Existing System Static Conditions (Exhibit A.1) 

Pressure 

Zone Tower Level 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Pressure 

Range (psi) 

IPZ Industrial Tower HWL (1000 ft) Off Off 56 - 96 
WPZ Franklin Tower HWL (935 ft) Off Off 39 - 131 

 
 

Table 3. Existing System Peak Hour Demand Conditions (Exhibit A.2) 

Pressure 

Zone Tower Level 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Pressure 

Range 

IPZ Industrial Tower LWL (980.5 ft) Off Off 47 - 87 
WPZ Franklin Tower LWL (914 ft) Off Off 30 - 121  

 
 

Table 4. Existing System Available Fire Flow during Max Day Demand (Exhibit A.3) 

Pressure 

Zone Tower Level 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Available 

Fire Flow 

(gpm) 

IPZ Industrial Tower LWL  (962.5 ft) Off Off 990 - 5,460 
WPZ Franklin Tower LWL (900 ft) Off Off 420 -4,720 

 
 
The results from the model show that the existing IPZ pressures are within the recommended pressures during 
static and peak hour demand conditions. All the fire flows are above the minimum 500 gpm for residential areas.  
 
The WPZ pressures range from 30 psi during peak hour demand conditions to 131 psi during static conditions. 
This is outside the recommended operating pressures. The low pressure area (less than 35 psi) is located around 
the Franklin Street Tower as shown in Exhibit A.2. There are two areas that are well beyond the maximum 
pressure recommended by 10 State Standards. The first area is near the intersection of Gear St. and Prospect St. 
Pressures reach 131 psi at the closed valve that separates the WPZ from the LPZ. The second area is located near 
the intersection of Dodge St. and Franklin St where an isolated PRV separates the WPZ and LPZ. Pressures reach 
approximately 119 psi in this area.  
 
The WPZ has adequate fire flow. There are isolated hydrants that have fire flows less than 500 gpm. These 
hydrants are located at the end of long, small diameter mains as shown in Exhibit A.3.  
  

Page 30 of 60



 
 

7 
 

Alternative 1 – Rehab Franklin Street Water Tower 
Description 

Alternative 1 consists of recoating the interior and exterior of the existing Franklin Street Water Tower. Other 
distribution improvements are recommended to better meet the design standards, improve system reliability and 
limit long dead-ends. The improvements include installation of six new pressure reducing valve stations, one 
check valve station, and replacing the altitude valve that fills the Dodge Street Standpipe. Exhibit B shows the 
location of the improvements.  Table 5 describes the purpose of each improvement.  
 

Table 5. Alternative 1 Distribution System Improvements 

Improvement  

Number 

Location Purpose 

1. Replace 
Altitude Valve Dodge Street Standpipe 

Operators will be able to control the water levels in 
the Dodge Street Standpipe which will allow them 
to use its full storage capacity. 

2. New PRV 
Station Intersection of Gear and West St. 

Existing pressures range between 110 to 130 psi 
between High St. and Prospect St on Gear Street. 
This PRV will decrease the pressures to be within 
the recommended pressure range. Consequently 
this PRV will create a new pressure zone because 
the HGL in the LPZ is too low to provide adequate 
pressures to this area. 

3. New Check 
Valve Station Intersection of  Gear and High St. 

The check valve will allow water to flow from LPZ 
into new pressure zone during emergency 
conditions. 

4. New PRV 
Station 

Intersection of Meeker St. and 
Soldiers Monument Rd. 

This PRV will replace the partially open valve and 
be moved down the street so customers at higher 
elevations will be in the WPZ and have higher 
pressures. 

5. New PRV 
Station 

Extension of Clay St. and 
extension of Hickory St. 

PRV to allow water to flow into LPZ during 
emergencies and improve water quality in long 
dead end main. 

6. New PRV 
Station 

Intersection of Summit St. and 
Spring St. 

Allows water to flow from WPZ to LPZ during 
emergencies and improve water quality in long 
dead end main. 

7. New PRV 
Station 

Intersection of Dodge St. and Hill 
St. 

Allows water to flow from WPZ to LPZ during 
emergencies. 

8. New PRV 
Station 

Intersection of Dodge St. and 
Franklin St. 

Allows water to flow from WPZ to LPZ during 
emergencies and improve water quality in long 
dead end main. 

9. Recoat 
Franklin 
Tower 

Franklin Street Water Tower Recoat the Franklin Tower on the interior and 
exterior. 

 
Model Results 

Alternative 1 was modeled under static demand conditions, PHD conditions, and fire flow plus MDD conditions. 
Table 6, Table 7, and Table 8 is a summary of the model results, respectively. Exhibits for each hydraulic 
condition can be found in Appendix A.   

Page 31 of 60



 
 

8 
 

Table 6. Alternative 1 Static Conditions (Exhibit B.1) 

Pressure Zone Tower Level / PRV Setting 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Pressure 

Range (psi) 

IPZ Industrial Tower HWL  (1000 ft) Off Off 56 - 96 
WPZ Franklin Tower HWL (935 ft) Off Off 39-119 
New PZ PRV Set at HGL (897 ft) Off Off 55-97 

 
 

Table 7. Alternative 1 Peak Hour Demand Conditions (Exhibit B.2) 

Pressure Zone Tower Level / PRV Setting 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Pressure 

Range (psi) 

IPZ Industrial Tower LWL (980.5 ft) Off Off 47 - 87 
WPZ Franklin Tower LWL (914 ft) Off Off 30 - 109 
New PZ PRV Set at HGL (897 ft) Off Off 55 - 97 

 
 

Table 8. Alternative 1 Available Fire Flow during Max Day Demand (Exhibit B.3) 

Pressure Zone Tower Level / PRV Setting 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Available Fire 

Flow (gpm) 

IPZ Industrial Tower LWL (962.5 ft) Off Off 990 - 5,460 
WPZ Franklin Tower LWL (900 ft) Off Off 420 - 4,720 
New PZ PRV Set at HGL (897 ft) Off Off 570 - 1,550 

 
The results of the IPZ are the same as shown in the existing system. Alternative 1 does not impact the IPZ with 
regards to pressure or fire flow. 
 
The WPZ pressures range from 30 psi during PHD to 119 psi during static conditions with the improvements 
included in Alternative 1. Pressures below 35 psi still exist around the Franklin Tower. Additionally, high 
pressures near the intersection of Dodge St. and Franklin St. still exist. The area of improved pressures is where 
the New PZ is created along Gear St. from West St. to High St. The high pressure in the New PZ is 97 psi rather 
than 131 psi in the existing system. 
 
The improvements for this alternative had little impact on the fire flows. This was expected since the Industrial 
Water Tower, and Franklin Water Tower are providing fire flow to the same areas. 
 

Cost 

The engineer’s opinion of probable total project cost is $1,511,000. This includes construction costs, legal costs, 
engineering costs, and a 15% contingency cost. A large portion of the cost is recoating the Franklin Water Tower. 
The recoating is estimated to cost approximately $925,000 based on quotes received by the City in 2017. 
Appendix B shows a detailed breakdown of the project costs. 
 
Advantages and Disadvantages 

Table 9 lists the advantages and disadvantages associated with Alternative 1 

Page 32 of 60



 
 

9 
 

Table 9. Alternative 1 Advantages and Disadvantages 

No. Advantages Disadvantages 

1. Fire flow does not require Well No. 5 or 
No. 6 to be turned on. 

Franklin Water Tower will need to be 
recoated every 20-40 years. 

2. Eliminates high pressure area along Gear 
St. from West St. to Prospect St. 

Still have the existing low pressure area 
along Franklin Street from Gear St. to 
Ridge St. 

3.  Industrial Park BPS will remain in service 
and need to be maintained. 

4.  Excessive storage makes it difficult for 
operators to get proper water turnover. 

 

Alternative 2 - Elimination of Franklin Street Tower 

Alternative 2 consists of eliminating the Franklin Street Water Tower. With the elimination of the tower, new 
pressure zone boundaries are created between the WPZ and IPZ. Well No. 5, Well No. 6. and Well No. 7 will 
pump into the Industrial Water Tower. The pumping capacity of Well No. 5 and Well No. 6 will decrease by 
approximately 200-300 gpm, because of new hydraulic conditions.  
 
Moreover, eliminating the tower requires 3,580 linear feet of 10-in PVC main, an additional three pressure 
reducing stations and 17 private service PRVs compared to Alternative 1.  Exhibit C shows the new pressure zone 
boundaries and the location of the improvements. Table 10 describes the purpose of each improvement. 
Improvements 1 – 8 for Alternative 2 are the same as Alternative 1 Improvements 1-8. 
 

Table 10. Alternative 2 Distribution System Improvements 

Improvement  

Number 

Location Purpose 

1. Replace 
Altitude Valve Dodge Street Standpipe 

Operators will be able to control the water levels 
in the Dodge Street Standpipe which will allow 
them to use its full storage capacity.  

2. New PRV 
Station 

Approximately 400 feet northwest 
of the Intersection of Gear and West 
St., on Gear St. 

Existing pressures range between 110 to 130 psi 
between High St. and Prospect St on Gear Street. 
This PRV will decrease the pressures to be 
within the recommended pressure range. 
Consequently this PRV will create a new 
pressure zone because the HGL in the LPZ is too 
low to provide adequate pressures to this area. 

3. New Check 
Valve Station Intersection of  Gear and High St. 

The check valve will allow water to flow from 
LPZ into new pressure zone during emergency 
conditions. 

4. New PRV 
Station 

Intersection of Meeker St. and 
Soldiers Monument Rd. 

This PRV will replace the partially open valve 
and be moved down the street so customers at 
higher elevations will be in the WPZ and have 
higher pressures. 

5. New PRV 
Station 

Extension of Clay St. and extension 
of Hickory St.  

PRV to allow water to flow into LPZ during 
emergencies and improve water quality in long 
dead end main. 

Page 33 of 60



 
 

10 
 

6. New PRV 
Station 

Intersection of Summit St. and 
Spring St. 

Allows water to flow from WPZ to LPZ during 
emergencies and improve water quality in long 
dead end main. 

7. New PRV 
Station 

Intersection of Dodge St. and Hill 
St. 

Allows water to flow from WPZ to LPZ during 
emergencies.  

8. New PRV 
Station 

Intersection of Dodge St. and 
Franklin St. 

Allows water to flow from WPZ to LPZ during 
emergencies and improve water quality in long 
dead end main. 

9. New PRV 
Station Gear St. and Shadow Bluff Dr. Protects customers on Shadow Bluff St. from 

high pressures when Well No. 6 is running. 

10. Private Service 
PRVs Gear St. 

Customers served off of the 10-in. main on Gear 
St. will require individual PRVs on their service 
line. 

11. New PRV 
Station 

300-ft. east of the intersection of 
Irvine St. and Galena Square Dr. 

Creates a new boundary between the IPZ and 
LPZ. PRV will allow water to flow into the WPZ 
from the IPZ during normal operations.  

12. New PRV 
Station  

Intersection of Franklin St. and Hill 
St. 

Creates a new boundary between the IPZ and 
LPZ. PRV will allow water to flow into the WPZ 
from the IPZ. 

13. Remove 
Franklin Tower Franklin Tower Site Demolition of Franklin Tower 

14. Remove 
Industrial Pump 
Station 

Exchange St. Demolition of Industrial Pump Station 

15. 460 LF 10-in. 
PVC Water 
Main 

Intersection of Oldenburg Ln and 
HWY 20. The main will extend 
northwest approximately 460 LF. 

It increases the available fire flow delivered to 
the WPZ, increases pressure during peak hour 
demands, and provides a redundant route for 
water from Industrial Park Tower, improving 
system reliability. 

16. 3,120LF 10-in. 
PVC Water 
Main 

Intersection Country View Ct. and 
Cobblestone Blvd. to Bartell Blvd. 

It increases the available fire flow delivered to 
the WPZ, increases pressure during peak hour 
demands, and provides a redundant route for 
water from Industrial Park Tower, improving 
system reliability. 

 
Model Results 

Alternative 2 was modeled under static demand conditions, PHD conditions, and fire flow plus MDD conditions. 
Table 11, Table 12, and Table 13 summarize the results from the model, respectively. Exhibits for each hydraulic 
condition can be found in Appendix A.   
 

Table 11. Alternative 2 Static Conditions (Exhibit C.1) 

Pressure 

Zone Tower Level / PRV Setting 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Pressure 

Range (psi) 

New IPZ Industrial Tower HWL (1000 ft) Off Off 56 - 104 
New WPZ PRV HGL (935 ft) Off Off 45 - 119 
New PZ PRV HGL (903 ft) Off Off 58-101 

 
 

Page 34 of 60



 
 

11 
 

Table 12. Alternative 2 Peak Hour Demand Conditions (Exhibit C.2) 

Pressure 

Zone Tower Level / PRV Setting 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Pressure 

Range (psi) 

New IPZ Industrial Tower LWL (980.5 ft) Off Off 45 - 87 
New WPZ PRV HGL (914 ft) Off Off 45-118 
New PZ PRV HGL (903 ft) Off Off 56-99 

 
 

Table 13. Alternative 2 Available Fire Flow during Max Day Demand (Exhibit C.3) 

Pressure 

Zone Tower Level / PRV Setting 

Well 

#5 

Well 

#6 

Available Fire 

Flow (gpm) 

New IPZ Industrial Tower LWL (962.5 ft) Off Off 700 – 5,340  
New IPZ Industrial Tower LWL (962.5 ft) Off On 870 – 5,900 
New WPZ PRV HGL (935 ft) Off Off 510 - 2,300 
New WPZ PRV HGL (935 ft) On On 510 – 4,900 
New PZ PRV HGL (903 ft) Off Off 600 - 1,350 
New PZ PRV HGL (903 ft) Off On 600 - 2,800 

 
The pressures in all the pressure zones are above the minimum recommended operating pressure of 35 during 
PHD conditions. The pressures in the New IPZ are 4 psi above the maximum recommended operating pressure of 
100 psi. The New WPZ has the same high pressure area as described under the existing system and Alternative 1 
analysis.  
 
The fire flows in the new IPZ and New PZ are all above the minimum of 500 gpm for residential areas. The 
available fire flow along Franklin Street, adjacent to the school, decreased by 3,400 gpm from 4,720 gpm to 1,320 
gpm. This level of fire protection for a school is unacceptable. Typically, high occupancy buildings require fire 
flows above 3,500 gpm. However, if Well No. 5 and 6 are turned on, the available fire flow near the school 
increases to approximately 3,580 gpm as shown in Exhibit C.4, which is acceptable. The City determined it is 
acceptable protocol to turn Well No. 5 and 6 for firefighting needs.  

Cost 

The engineer’s opinion of probable total project cost is $1,215,000. This includes construction costs, legal costs, 
engineering costs, and a 15% contingency. Appendix B shows a detailed breakdown of the project costs. 
 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

There are several advantages and disadvantages associated with Alternative 2 as described in Table 14 below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35 of 60



 
 

12 
 

Table 14. Alternative 2 Advantages and Disadvantages 

No. Advantages Disadvantages 

1. 
Do not have to maintain the Franklin 
Water Tower that requires expensive 
maintenance every 20-40 years. 

Fire Flows in the area of the school are 
lower. Well No. 5 and Well No. 6 need to 
be turned on to raise the flow to 
acceptable levels. 

2. Eliminates the low pressure area along 
Franklin Street from Gear St. to Ridge St. 

System reliability is reduced by not 
having a redundant water main 
connecting Industrial Park Water Tower 
to the remainder of the system along 
HWY 20 between Bartell Blvd. and the 
existing Franklin Tower Site. 

3. Industrial Park BPS is decommissioned 
and will not be required to be maintained. 

Requires 3 additional PRV stations to be 
maintained 

4. Eliminates high pressure area along Gear 
St. from West St. to Prospect St. 

Power demand charges on wells could 
increase with less storage available. 

5. Increases water turnover in towers by 
decreasing amount of storage.  

 

Conclusions & Recommendation 

The purpose of this Memorandum is to analyze the effects of eliminating the Franklin Street Water Tower in the 
West Pressure Zone (WPZ) with respect to pressure, fire flow, and cost. A city-wide hydraulic distribution model 
was built and calibrated to analyze the water system. The existing system was analyzed first. The existing system 
had pressures that ranged from 30 psi to 131 psi during normal operating conditions. This is outside the 
recommended minimum and maximum pressure range (35psi – 100psi). The existing available fire flows are 
adequate. 
 
Two alternatives were developed, analyzed, and compared against each other. Rehabilitating the existing Franklin 
Street Water Tower (Alt1) includes the installation of six new pressures reducing valve stations, one check valve 
station, and replacing the altitude valve that fills the Dodge Street Standpipe. Alt 1 pressure ranged throughout the 
IPZ, WPZ, and New PZ from 30 psi to 119 psi. Alt 1 has the same low pressure area as the existing system. The 
high pressure area is located at the boundary of the WPZ and LPZ near the intersection of Dodge St. and Franklin 
St. The available fire flows are adequate. Alt 1 total estimated project cost is $1,511,000.  
 
Elimination of the Franklin Street Water Tower (Alt 2) includes demolishing the Franklin Street Water and 
Industrial Park Pump Station. The distribution improvements include 3,580 linear feet of 10-in. main, 9 pressure 
reducing valve stations, 1 check valve station and 17 individual service PRVs.  Alt 2 pressures ranged throughout 
the IPZ, WPZ, and New PZ from 45 psi to 119 psi. Alt 2 improved the system pressures so all the pressures are 
above the recommended minimum pressure of 35 psi. The high pressure area near the intersection of Dodge St. 
and Franklin St still exists. The existing system and Alt 1 have the same high pressure area.  Alt 2 requires Well 
No. 5 and No. 6 to be turned on in order to get adequate fire flow near the school. Alt 2 total estimated project 
costs is $1,215,000. 
 
Alt1 - Rehabilitating the Franklin Street Tower and Alt 2 -Eliminating the Franklin Street Tower are both viable 
alternatives. The main disadvantage with Alt 1 is that recoating the tower is an expensive maintenance cost that 
reoccurs every 20 to 40 years. It is estimated to cost approximately $925,000 dollars for recoating the tower alone. 
Another disadvantage is that Alt 1 has pressures below the recommended 35 psi during normal operating 
conditions. One disadvantage of Alt 2 is that to achieve acceptable fire flows Well No. 5 and No. 6 must be turned 
on. The main advantage of Alt 2 is that it removes the expensive maintenance cost associated with maintaining 

Page 36 of 60



 
 

13 
 

the Franklin Tower. Furthermore, this Alt 2 eliminates the Industrial Park Pump Station and any operational and 
maintenance cost associated with it. Alt 2 also increases the pressures so all pressures are above 35 psi during 
normal operating conditions. Lastly, Alt 2 is projected to cost $296,000 dollars less than Alt 1. Therefore, Alt 2 – 
Elimination of the Franklin Street Water is the recommended alternative. 
 
Additional Recommendations 

Additional water distribution improvements were identified during this study that would improve the City’s Water 
System but are not required to eliminate the Franklin Water Tower. However, the following improvements should 
be considered in the City’s future Capital Improvement Plans. 

Looped Water Mains 
There are three areas where water flows through a single main from the Industrial Park Water Tower to the looped 
mains near Well #5 when eliminating the Franklin Street Water Tower.  The reliability of Galena’s water system 
under this alternative could be improved by installing looped mains to provide two routes for water to flow to the 
WPZ. If one main experiences a break, there is still a route for water to flow to the remainder of the distribution 
system. The longest stretch served by a single main is along HWY 20 from Bartell Blvd. to the looped mains near 
Well No. 5.  Another area is located along Technical Drive immediately southeast of the Industrial Water Tower. 
The last area is located along HWY 20 from the intersection of Industrial Drive south for approximately 320-ft. It 
is recommended to include these areas in the City’s future Capital Improvement Plan. These improvements are 
not required to eliminate the Franklin Street Water Tower. 

Connection to Indian Ridge Subdivision 
Currently, Indian Ridge Subdivision is served by single 6-in main along Blackhawk Drive. There are 90 
customers served by this single 6-in main. Operators indicated a past water main break caused all 90 customers to 
be without water while the main was fixed. A redundant connection to Indian Ridge Subdivision would help 
eliminate this from happening in the future.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 37 of 60



 
 

14 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

EXHIBITS 

  

Page 38 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

AÚ

AÚ

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

WT

T

T

T

Park

Co
un

cil
 H

ill

Buckhill

Gear

U.S. Route 20/84 West
Franklin

Bla
ckj

ack

Field

Fe
rry

 La
nd

ing

Cr
os

s

Elk

Re
d G

ate
s

Do
dg

e

Bartell

Hig
h

Be
nc

h

Chetlain

Sproule

Deininger

De
we

y

Golf View

Wate
r

We
st

Fifth

Rocky

Done
gan

South

Su
mm

it

Norris

Fulton

Boggess

Technical
Stagecoach

Irvine

Bouthillier

Illin
ois

 R
ou

te 
84

 N
ort

h

Powder House Hill

Irish Hollow

Pros
pec

t

Tu
rne

y

Elm

Th
ird

Rives

Washington

Young

Hill

Dogleg

Clinton

Kelly

Div
isio

n

Meeker

Jackson

Ma
in

Windy

Campbell

Saturn

Industrial

High Ridge

Hic
ko

ry

Wa
nn

Ja
me

s
De

ll

Cobblestone

Ju
pit

er

Green

Dandar

Ol
y

Barry

A.J. Harle

School Section

Apache

Fo
urt

h

Arrowhead

Mississippi

Oa
k

Perry

Maple Jo Daviess

Te
e

Mars

Clau
de

Horseshoe View

Appollo

Rid
ge

Domino

Cottonwood

Muir

Clay

Bridge

Vine

Bluff

Me
rid

ian

Sio
ux

U.S. Route 20 West

Alexander

Pu
tte

r

Lin
col

n

Coneflower

Exchange

Klockow

Iowa

Shadow Bluff

Spare

Little Doe

Altenburg

Willia
ms

West

Elk

Do
dg

eWe
st

Hic
ko

ry

Ridge

Green

Cross

Oak

Hill

Dodge

Ma
in

Bridge

Hil
l

Do
dg

e Four
th

Gear

Third

Division

Be
nch

Pr
os

pe
ct

Third

Hill

Meeker

Hig
h

Elk

West

We
st

Dodge

Elk

West

Hill

Hig
h

Oak

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS,
AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT A
EXISTING WATER SYSTEM

GALENA, IL

0 1,000 2,000500
FEET

Legend
T Water Towers
W Wells
AÚ Pump Stations
!? Closed Valve

Existing PRV Stations
= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Zone
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

NORTH

Project No. 15038

© COPYRIGHT 2019 ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
THESE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED

SPECIFICALLY FOR THIS PROJECT ONLY. 
NO PART OF THIS DOCUMENT MAY BE 

REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED IN ANY FORM
WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF IIW, P.C. 
ALL INFORMATION IN THIS DOCUMENT IS

CONSIDERED PROPERTY OF IIW, P.C.

INDUSTRIAL 
WATER TOWER

FRANKLIN STREET 
WATER TOWER

INDUSTRIAL 
PUMP STATION

WELL # 6

WELL # 5

BOOTHILLIER 
PUMP STATION

DODGE STREET
STANDPIPE

HORSESHOE MOUND
RESERVOIR

WELL # 7

NOTES:
1.  ALL THE PRVs ARE ASSUMED INACTIVE.
2.  ALTITUDE VALVE USED TO FILL THE DODGE STREET
STANDPIPE IS INACTIVE. A VALVE IN DISTRIBUTION 
SYSTEM IS USED TO MAINTAIN WATER LEVEL IN 
DODGE STREET STANDPIPE.

VALVE IS PARTIALLY OPEN TO FILL 
DODGE STREET STANDPIPE.

Page 39 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

AÚ

AÚ

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

T

85

65

70

60

75

95

90

80

65

75

70

60

90

70

70

80

80

65
60

75

55

50

80 85

90
95

45

100 105

40

110

70

120

115

125

13
0

75

70

85

115

100

65

90

70

100

105

110

90

75

90

100

105

75

45

80

80
85

90

95

95

105

50

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT A.1
EXISTING SYSTEM
STATIC PRESSURE

0 500250
FEET

Legend
T Water Towers

W Wells

AÚ Pump Stations
PRV

= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Contour (psi)
0-20
21-30
31-40
41-50
51-60
61-70
71-80
81-90
91-100
101-110
110-120
>120

Pressure Zones
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

NORTH

NOTES:
1. ALL TANK LEVELS ARE SET AT OVERFLOW.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 1000 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK = 935 FT.
     
2. ALL WELLS AND PUMPS ARE OFF.

Page 40 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

AÚ

AÚ

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

T

55
50

65

45

40

70 75

80
85

90

35

95

100

60

110

105

115

30

12
0

80

60

90

105

75

10
0

55
65

70

75

95

60

85

95

55

65

80

85

90

90

40

100

70

80

90

80

85

55

65

95

75

55
60

65

50

8580

70

55

65

70

65

60

80

55

60

60

75 70

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT A.2
EXISTING SYSTEM

PEAK HOUR DEMAND 
PRESSURE

0 500250
FEET

Legend
T Water Towers

W Wells

AÚ Pump Stations
PRV

= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Contours (5 psi Interval)
0-20
21-30
31-40
41-50
51-60
61-70
71-80
81-90
91-100
101-110
110-120
>120

Pressure Zones
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 980.5 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK = 914 FT.
     
2. ALL WELLS ARE OFF.

3. PEAK DAY FACTOR = 6.

Page 41 of 60



¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬
¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬¬

¬ ¬
¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

AÚ

AÚ

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

T

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT A.3
EXISTING SYSTEM

AVAILABLE FIRE FLOW

0 500250
FEET

Legend
T Water Towers

W Wells

AÚ Pump Stations
PRV

= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated

Available Fireflow (gpm)

¬ < = 500

¬ 501-1000

¬ 1001-1500

¬ 1501-2000

¬ 2001-2500

¬ 2501-3000

¬ 3001-3500

¬ >3500
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Zones
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 962.5 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK = 900 FT.
     DODGE ST. STANDPIPE = 840 FT.
2. ALL WELLS AND PUMPS ARE OFF.
3. MAX DAY FACTOR = 2.5.

Page 42 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

AÚ

AÚ

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

T

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Gear

Park

Franklin

U.S. Route 20/84 West

Co
un

cil 
Hil

l

Elk

Do
dg

e

Bartell

Cross

Hig
h Be

nc
h

Sproule

Re
d G

ate
s

De
we

y

Golf View

Chetlain

Water

We
st

South

Su
mm

it

Fulton

Technical

Irvine

Bouthillier

Pros
pec

t

Boggess

Elm

Ferry Landing

Th
ird

Rives

Washington

Hill

Young

Kelly

Clinton

Norris

Div
isio

n

Meeker

Jackson

Commerce

Ma
in

Field

Campbell

Industrial

Wa
nn

Hic
ko

ry

De
ll

Buckhill

Ja
me

s

Blackjack

Cobb
les

ton
e

Fifth

Green

Dandar

Barry

A.J. Harle

Do
gle

g

Fo
urt

h

Oa
k

Mississippi

Ap
ac

he

Perry

Winnebago

Maple

Te
e

Mars

Clau
de

Wight

Horseshoe View

Adams

Galena Square

Jefferson

Rid
ge

Clay

Bridge

McBreams

Vine

Council Fire

Sio
ux

Pu
tte

r

Lin
col

n

Alexander

Bla
ck

ha
wk

Iowa

Coneflower

Klockow

Exchange

Spare

Shadow Bluff

Monroe

Tyler

Muir

Bluff

Ry
an

Madison

Menominee
Co

un
try

 Vi
ew

Lafayette

Drisc
oll

Dia
go

na
l

Me
dic

al 
Ce

nte
r

Bro
ad

wa
y

Brown

Lo
cu

st

Pawnee

Willia
ms

Altenburg

Spruce

Bouthiller

WarrenOlde Maple

Harrison

Gra
nt

Caroldon

Magazine

Old
 Qu

arr
y

Bu
ssa

n

Po
pla

r

Shea
r

Elk

Fourth

Oak

Meeker

Hickory

Third

Green

Fo
urt

h

Ridge

Madison

Bridge

Division

Hil
l

Be
nch

Laf
aye

tte

Pr
os

pe
ct

Hic
ko

ry

Ha
rris

on

Cross

West

Hill

Hicko
ry

Division

Perry

Spare

Do
dg

e

Tyle
r

Red Gates

MeekerGear

Tyler

Hig
h

Thi
rd

Elk

Hill

We
st

Hig
h

Jackson

Elk

Division

Meeker

Clay

We
st

West

Do
dg

e

Do
dg

e

Main

Oak

Pr
os

pe
ct

Third

Ma
in

Hill

Div
isio

n

High

Fo
urt

h

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT B
ALTERNATIVE 1

FRANKLIN TOWER
REHABILITATION
IMPROVEMENTS

0 500250
FEET

Legend
? Proposed PRV
T Water Towers
W Wells
AÚ Pump Stations
!? Existing Closed Valve

Pressure Zone
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
New Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

Existing PRV Station
= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

NORTH

1. REPLACE ALTITUDE VALVE

2.  PRV STATION

4. PRV STATION

3.  CV STATION

5. PRV STATION

9. RECOAT FRANKLIN TOWER

6.  PRV STATION

8.  PRV STATION
7.  PRV STATION

Page 43 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

AÚ

AÚ

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

T

?

?

?

?

?

65

55

75

50

80 85

90
95

45

100

40

105

110

70

115

60

80

60

70

85

60

95

65

85
105

90

80

65

65

90

75 90

95

45

75

50

95

90

90

100

75

100

70

7065

75

85

80

60

90 95

80

60

85

70
75

90

85

65

70

60

75

95

90

80

75

70

65

80

60

70

90

80

70

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT B.1
ALTERNATIVE 1

FRANKLIN TOWER
REHABILITATION

STATIC PRESSURE

0 500250
FEET

Legend
? Proposed PRV
T Water Towers

W Wells

AÚ Pump Stations
Existing PRV

= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Contours (5 psi Interval)
0-20
21-30
31-40
41-50
51-60
61-70
71-80
81-90
91-100
101-110
110-120
>120

Pressure Zone
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
New Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 1000 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK = 935 FT.
     
2. ALL WELLS ARE OFF.

3. PEAK DAY FACTOR = 6.

Page 44 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

AÚ

AÚ

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

T

?

?

?

?

?

7065

75

85

80

60

90 95

80
75
70

85

60

90

75

55
60

65

50

85

80

70

70

75

60

55

80

65

70

55

60

65

60

55
50

45

65

40

70 75

80
85

90

35

95

100

60

105

30

8555

60 60

95

85

75

90

65

55

85

40

60

65

80

65

70

70

80

80

90

75

80

55

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT B.2
ALTERNATIVE 1

FRANKLIN TOWER
REHABILITATION

PEAK HOUR DEMAND 
PRESSURE

0 500250
FEET

Legend
? Proposed PRV
T Water Towers

W Wells

AÚ Pump Stations
Existing PRV

= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Contours (5 psi Interval)
0-20
21-30
31-40
41-50
51-60
61-70
71-80
81-90
91-100
101-110
110-120
>120

Pressure Zone
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
New Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 980.5 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK = 914 FT.
     
2. ALL WELLS ARE OFF.

3. PEAK DAY FACTOR = 6.

Page 45 of 60



¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬
¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬¬

¬

¬

¬
¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

?
?

?

?

?

?

? ?

?

?

?

?

?

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT B.3
ALTERNATIVE 1

FRANKLIN TOWER
REHABILITATION

AVAILABLE FIRE FLOW

0 500250
FEET

Legend
Available Fire Flow (gpm)

¬ < = 500

¬ 501-1000

¬ 1001-1500

¬ 1501-2000

¬ 2001-2500

¬ 2501-3000

¬ 3001-3500

¬ >3500

? Proposed PRV
T Water Towers

W Wells

PRV
= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Zone
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
New Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 962.5 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK = 900 FT.
     DODGE ST. STANDPIPE = 840 FT.
2. ALL WELLS AND PUMPS ARE OFF.
3. MAX DAY FACTOR = 2.5.

Page 46 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

AÚ

AÚ

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

T

?
?

?

?

?

? ?

?

?

?

Gear

Park

Franklin

U.S. Route 20/84 West

Co
un

cil 
Hil

l

Elk

Do
dg

e

Bartell

Cross

Hig
h Be

nc
h

Sproule

Re
d G

ate
s

De
we

y

Golf View

Chetlain

Water

We
st

South

Su
mm

it

Fulton

Technical

Irvine

Bouthillier

Pros
pec

t

Boggess

Elm

Ferry Landing

Th
ird

Rives

Washington

Hill

Young

Kelly

Clinton

Norris

Div
isio

n

Meeker

Jackson

Commerce

Ma
in

Field

Campbell

Industrial

Wa
nn

Hic
ko

ry

De
ll

Buckhill

Ja
me

s

Blackjack

Cobb
les

ton
e

Fifth

Green

Dandar

Barry

A.J. Harle

Do
gle

g

Fo
urt

h

Oa
k

Mississippi

Ap
ac

he

Perry

Winnebago

Maple

Te
e

Mars

Clau
de

Wight

Horseshoe View

Adams

Galena Square

Jefferson

Rid
ge

Clay

Bridge

McBreams

Vine

Council Fire

Sio
ux

Pu
tte

r

Lin
col

n

Alexander

Bla
ck

ha
wk

Iowa

Coneflower

Klockow

Exchange

Spare

Shadow Bluff

Monroe

Tyler

Muir

Bluff

Ry
an

Madison

Menominee
Co

un
try

 Vi
ew

Lafayette

Drisc
oll

Dia
go

na
l

Me
dic

al 
Ce

nte
r

Bro
ad

wa
y

Brown

Lo
cu

st

Pawnee

Willia
ms

Altenburg

Spruce

Bouthiller

WarrenOlde Maple

Harrison

Gra
nt

Caroldon

Magazine

Old
 Qu

arr
y

Bu
ssa

n

Po
pla

r

Shea
r

Elk

Fourth

Oak

Meeker

Hickory

Third

Green

Fo
urt

h

Ridge

Madison

Bridge

Division

Hil
l

Be
nch

Laf
aye

tte

Pr
os

pe
ct

Hic
ko

ry

Ha
rris

on

Cross

West

Hill

Hicko
ry

Division

Perry

Spare

Do
dg

e

Tyle
r

Red Gates

MeekerGear

Tyler

Hig
h

Thi
rd

Elk

Hill

We
st

Hig
h

Jackson

Elk

Division

Meeker

Clay

We
st

West

Do
dg

e

Do
dg

e

Main

Oak

Pr
os

pe
ct

Third

Ma
in

Hill

Div
isio

n

High

Fo
urt

h

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT C
ALTERNATIVE 2

FRANKLIN TOWER
ELIMINATION

IMPROVEMENTS

0 500250
FEET

Legend
Proposed In Home PRVs

T Water Towers
W Wells
AÚ Pump Stations

Proposed Water Main
Alt2_PRVs

? Proposed PRV
!? Existing Closed Valve

Existing PRV Station
= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Zone
East Pressure Zone
Industrial Pressure Zone
Low Pressure Zone
New Pressure Zone
West Pressure Zone

NORTH

1. REPLACE ALTITUDE VALVE

2.  PRV STATION

4. PRV STATION

3.  CV STATION

5. PRV STATION

13. REMOVE
      FRANKLIN TOWER

14. REMOVE INDUSTRIAL 
      PUMP STATION

11. PRV STATION

12. PRV STATION

6.  PRV STATION

8.  PRV STATION
7.  PRV STATION

 

16. 10" PVC WATER 
       MAIN (3,120 LF)

10.  INSTALL 17 PRIVATE 
       SERVICE PRVS. 9.  PRV STATION

15. 10" PVC WATER 
       MAIN (460 LF)

Page 47 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

?
?

?

?

?

? ?

?

?

?

75

70

65

80
90

85

60

95 100

90

70

75
80

85

95

80

85

70

90

75

95

60

100

55

50

115

105

110

65

65

75

65

70

90

100

95

70

100

105

85

95

110

90

90

75

75

80

50
85

80

75

90

75

70

85
65

90

60

95

100

80

85

85

90

10
0

85

60

90

70

80

90

90

80

100

80

95

75

65

70

95

75

85

70

80

80

75

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT C.1
ALTERNATIVE 2

FRANKLIN TOWER
ELIMINATION

STATIC PRESSURE

0 500250
FEET

Legend
? Proposed PRV

Proposed Mains
 

T Water Towers

Proposed Water Mains
W Wells

AÚ Pump Stations
PRV

= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

Pressure Contours (5 psi Interval)
0-20
21-30
31-40
41-50
51-60
61-70
71-80
81-90
91-100
101-110
110-120
>120

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 1000 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK REMOVED.
     DODGE ST. STANDPIPE = 872 FT.
2. ALL WELLS AND PUMPS ARE OFF.

3. PEAK DAY FACTOR = 6.

Page 48 of 60



!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

?
?

?

?

?

? ?

?

?

?

75

70

65

80
90

85

60

95 100

90

70

75
80

85

95

65

80
85

70

90

75

95

55

50

100

110

105

115

45

60

85

60

100

7060

75

95

70

95

90

85

75

105

90

90

90

90

75

80

100

80

65

75

90

55
60

65

70

50

80

45

75

80

70

70

50

75

75

65

60

50

80

55

65

65

75

55

55

75

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT C.2
ALTERNATIVE 2

FRANKLIN TOWER
ELIMINATION

PEAK HOUR DEMAND
PRESSURE

0 500250
FEET

Legend
? Proposed PRV
T Water Towers

W Wells

AÚ Pump Stations
PRV

= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Proposed Water Main
Proposed Mains

 
Pressure Contours (5 psi Interval)

0-20
21-30
31-40
41-50
51-60
61-70
71-80
81-90
91-100
101-110
110-120
>120

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 980.5 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK REMOVED.
     DODGE ST. STANDPIPE = 840 FT.
2. ALL WELLS AND PUMPS ARE OFF.
3. 400 GPM TRANSMISSION FLOW
4. PEAK DAY FACTOR = 6.

Page 49 of 60



¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬ ¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬
¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬
¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

?
?

?

?

?

? ?

?

?

?

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT C.3
ALTERNATIVE 2

FRANKLIN TOWER
ELIMINATION

AVAILABLE FIRE FLOW

0 500250
FEET

Legend
Available Fire Flow (gpm)

¬ < = 500

¬ 501-1000

¬ 1001-1500

¬ 1501-2000

¬ 2001-2500

¬ 2501-3000

¬ 3001-3500

¬ >3500

Proposed PRV
? Proposed PRV
T Water Towers

Proposed Water Mains
W Wells

Existing PRV
= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 962.5 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK REMOVED.
     DODGE ST. STANDPIPE = 840 FT.
2. ALL WELLS AND PUMPS ARE OFF.
3. MAX DAY FACTOR = 2.5.

Page 50 of 60



¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬ ¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬
¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

¬

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

W

W

W T

T

?
?

?

?

?

? ?

?

?

?

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

EXHIBIT C.4
ALTERNATIVE 3

FRANKLIN TOWER
ELIMINATION

AVAILABLE FIRE FLOW
WELL NO. 5 & 6 ON

0 500250
FEET

Legend
Available Fire Flow (gpm)
¬ < = 500

¬ 501-1000

¬ 1001-1500

¬ 1501-2000

¬ 2001-2500

¬ 2501-3000

¬ 3001-3500

¬ >3500

? Proposed PRVs
T Water Towers

W Wells

Proposed Water Mains
Existing PRV

= Inactive - Bypassed
= Inactive - Isolated
!? Closed Valve

Main Diameter (Inches)
4
6
8
10
12

NORTH

NOTES:
1. TANK LEVELS.
     INDUSTRIAL TANK  = 962.5 FT.
     FRANKLIN TANK REMOVED.
     DODGE ST. STANDPIPE = 840 FT.
2. Well No. 5 & 6 ON.
3. MAX DAY FACTOR = 2.5.

Page 51 of 60



 
 

15 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

COST ESTIMATES 

 

Page 52 of 60



UNIT TOTAL

NO. DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE

1 Mobilization & Miscellaneous 1 LS $25,000.00 $25,000.00

2 Traffic Control 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00

3 Recoat Franklin Street Tower 1 LS $925,000.00 $925,000.00

4 4" Altitude Valve 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00

5 Pressure Reducing Valve Station 6 EA $35,000.00 $210,000.00

6 Check Valve Station 1 EA $35,000.00 $35,000.00

7 Abandon Pressure Reducing Valve Station 5 EA $5,000.00 $25,000.00

Construction Subtotal $1,230,000.00

Contingency - 15% $185,000.00

Engineering & Inspection - 20% 
1

$61,000.00

Legal & Administrative $35,000.00

TOTAL OF ENGINEER'S STATEMENT OF PROBABLE COST $1,511,000.00

Notes

1. The Recoating of Franklin Street Tower is not included in the 20% Engineering & Inspection Cost calculation. 

QUANTITY

CITY OF GALENA

PHASE II FRANKLIN TOWER ELIMINATION STUDY

WATER DISTRIBUTION - ALTERNATIVE 1

REHABILITATE FRANKLIN STREET WATER TOWER

ENGINEER'S STATEMENT OF PROBABLE COST

Page 53 of 60



UNIT TOTAL
NO. DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE

1 Mobilization & Miscellaneous 1 LS $50,000.00 $50,000.00

2 Traffic Control 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00

3 4" Altitude Valve 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00

4 Pressure Reducing Valve Station 9 EA $35,000.00 $315,000.00

5 Check Valve Station 1 EA $35,000.00 $35,000.00

6 Individual Home PRV 17 EA $1,500.00 $25,500.00

7 10" PVC Main 3583 LF $60.00 $215,000.00

8 10" Gate Valve 6 EA $2,100.00 $12,600.00

9 Compact DI Fittings 1500 LBS $8.00 $12,000.00

10 Fire Hydrant 5 EA $3,500.00 $17,500.00

11 Connection to Existing Main 4 EA $1,000.00 $4,000.00

12 Select Trench Backfill, Water Main 125 LF $20.00 $2,500.00

13 Rock Excavation (Inc. Granular Backfill) 220 CY $75.00 $16,500.00

14 HMA Pavement Patching 90 SY $35.00 $3,150.00

15 9" PCC Pavement Patching 65 SY $100.00 $6,500.00

16 PCC Curb & Gutter 75 LF $50.00 $3,750.00

17 Abandon Pressure Reducing Valve Station 5 EA $5,000.00 $25,000.00

18 Abandon Franklin Water Tower 1 LS $60,000.00 $60,000.00

19 Abandon Industrial Park Pump Station 1 LS $25,000.00 $25,000.00

20 Controls 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00

Construction Subtotal $874,000.00

Contingency - 15% $131,000.00

Engineering & Inspection - 20% $175,000.00

Legal & Administrative $35,000.00

TOTAL OF ENGINEER'S STATEMENT OF PROBABLE COST $1,215,000.00

CITY OF GALENA
PHASE II FRANKLIN TOWER ELIMINATION STUDY

WATER DISTRIBUTION - ALTERNATIVE 2
ELIMINATION OF FRANKLIN STREET WATER TOWER 

ENGINEER'S STATEMENT OF PROBABLE COST

QUANTITY

Page 54 of 60



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 8/27/2019 - 9/30/2019 Sep 05, 2019  10:39AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

A & G ELECTRIC (120743)
31161 1 Invoice INSPECTION OF SIGNAL  08/29/2019 552.50 15.41.514.06

Total A & G ELECTRIC (120743): 552.50

ADVANCED BUSINESS SYTEMS, INC. (118913)
94047 1 Invoice POSTAGE METER INK 08/22/2019 186.25 01.13.551.00

Total ADVANCED BUSINESS SYTEMS, INC. (118913): 186.25

AMERICAN RED CROSS (913)
22216601 1 Invoice STAFF CERTIFICATION 08/14/2019 266.00 59.55.563.00
22216601 2 Adjustmen STAFF CERTIFICATION 08/14/2019 266.00- 59.55.563.00

Total AMERICAN RED CROSS (913): .00

AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. (120448)
SI-1607838 1 Invoice TASER CARTRIDGES 08/27/2019 2,808.00 01.21.652.02

Total AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. (120448): 2,808.00

AZAVAR AUDIT (120348)
148097 1 Invoice REV AUDIT FEES 09/01/2019 41.94 01.11.549.00

Total AZAVAR AUDIT (120348): 41.94

CIVIL MATERIALS (120397)
117801 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 08/29/2019 973.80 15.41.614.00

Total CIVIL MATERIALS (120397): 973.80

COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244)
0469654 1 Invoice PREEMPTOR AT STOP LI 08/08/2019 903.73 22.22.929.00
0469802 1 Invoice RADIO REPAIR SQUAD # 08/27/2019 77.00 01.21.513.06

Total COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244): 980.73

DARLING, JANICE (120738)
090419 1 Invoice ITINERANT MERCHANT R 09/04/2019 25.00 01.11.912.00

Total DARLING, JANICE (120738): 25.00

DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS (119461)
227072406 1 Invoice PAVEMENT MARKING 08/28/2019 195.60 01.41.514.01

Total DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS (119461): 195.60

FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045)
7236 1 Invoice ELECTRICAL REPAIRS 07/30/2019 1,286.00 59.55.511.01
7238 1 Invoice PRESSURE VALVE REPAI 07/30/2019 430.00 59.55.511.01

Total FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045): 1,716.00

Page 55 of 60



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 8/27/2019 - 9/30/2019 Sep 05, 2019  10:39AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

GALENA ARC (850)
090419 1 Invoice REIMBURSEMENT/GENE 09/04/2019 25.00 59.55.929.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 25.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00068418 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 08/23/2019 182.40 01.16.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 182.40

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
102478 1 Invoice WEBSITE CHANGES/HOS 07/01/2019 213.30 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 213.30

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
090919 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 09/09/2019 290.00 01.13.511.07
090919 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  09/09/2019 270.00 01.13.511.08
090919 3 Invoice PARKS RESTROOMS 09/09/2019 765.00 17.52.422.00
090919 4 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 09/09/2019 258.50 01.13.511.09

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 1,583.50

IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260)
72913 1 Invoice INSPECTIONS 08/28/2019 1,022.50 01.41.514.03

Total IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260): 1,022.50

IL ASSN OF CHIEFS OF POLICE (486)
3426 1 Invoice TRAINING - LESSONS FR 08/20/2019 158.00 01.21.563.00

Total IL ASSN OF CHIEFS OF POLICE (486): 158.00

IL DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION (119038)
123042 1 Invoice US 20 PAVING/CITY SHA 09/01/2019 11,152.00 01.41.890.06

Total IL DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION (119038): 11,152.00

JACKSON CONCRETE/EXCAVATION CO (489)
082319 1 Invoice CONCRETE REPAIRS 08/23/2019 4,575.00 15.41.850.00

Total JACKSON CONCRETE/EXCAVATION CO (489): 4,575.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
090119 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 09/01/2019 5,054.41 15.41.572.00
090119 2 Invoice LIFT STATION/ELECTRIC 09/01/2019 118.40 52.43.850.09
090119 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 09/01/2019 874.16 01.21.571.01
090119 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 09/01/2019 44.31 12.10.571.01
090119 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 09/01/2019 45.59 17.52.571.01
090119 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 09/01/2019 218.60 20.25.576.01
090119 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 09/01/2019 498.14 22.22.576.01
090119 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 09/01/2019 1,511.12 58.54.571.01
090119 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS/ELECT 09/01/2019 35.20 01.41.571.01

Page 56 of 60



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 8/27/2019 - 9/30/2019 Sep 05, 2019  10:39AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,399.93

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)
080919 1 Invoice VACATION RENTAL INSP 08/09/2019 50.00 01.16.546.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 50.00

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
090419 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 09/04/2019 200.12 01.21.538.00
090419 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 09/04/2019 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

KRUSER SEPTIC SERVICE, INC. (120515)
37254 1 Invoice TV INSPECTION 08/01/2019 3,777.40 52.43.850.07
37446 1 Invoice TV INSPECTION 08/01/2019 426.25 52.43.850.07

Total KRUSER SEPTIC SERVICE, INC. (120515): 4,203.65

KUHN, BRIAN  (236)
090519 1 Invoice UNIFORMS 09/05/2019 94.93 01.41.579.02

Total KUHN, BRIAN  (236): 94.93

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9306963925 1 Invoice TOOLS 08/22/2019 253.58 01.41.653.00
9306974460 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/27/2019 487.07 01.41.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 740.65

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
4303 1 Invoice SEAL COAT 09/03/2019 15,748.40 41.61.860.02

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 15,748.40

LUCAS, LYNN (120741)
090419 1 Invoice ITINERANT MERCHANT R 09/04/2019 25.00 01.11.912.00

Total LUCAS, LYNN (120741): 25.00

MCCOMBIE, KELDEN (120728)
090419 1 Invoice LIFEGUARD CERTIFICATI 09/04/2019 150.00 59.55.691.06

Total MCCOMBIE, KELDEN (120728): 150.00

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (120561)
25381906 1 Invoice COPIES 08/19/2019 298.27 01.13.579.00
25381906 2 Invoice KIP 08/19/2019 244.26 52.43.549.00

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (120561): 542.53

NICOR (151)
090119 1 Invoice POOL-GAS 09/01/2019 1,031.64 59.55.571.02

Page 57 of 60



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 8/27/2019 - 9/30/2019 Sep 05, 2019  10:39AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total NICOR (151): 1,031.64

NICOR (F) (118924)
090119 1 Invoice POLICE-GAS 09/01/2019 77.61 01.21.571.05
090119 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 09/01/2019 131.34 01.41.571.05
090119 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 09/01/2019 115.00 22.22.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 323.95

O'CONNOR, BROOKS & CO. (158)
090419 1 Invoice AUDIT 09/04/2019 22,700.00 11.10.531.00

Total O'CONNOR, BROOKS & CO. (158): 22,700.00

PERFECTION LAWN CARE (119990)
3914 1 Invoice GRANT PARK MAINTENA 09/02/2019 300.00 17.52.870.04

Total PERFECTION LAWN CARE (119990): 300.00

PETERS, MAXINE (120739)
090419 1 Invoice PARK REFUND 09/04/2019 25.00 17.52.929.00

Total PETERS, MAXINE (120739): 25.00

QUILL CORP. (686)
9431380 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLES/POLIC 08/12/2019 207.96 01.21.651.00
9779347 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLES/ALL 08/27/2019 54.36 01.13.651.02

Total QUILL CORP. (686): 262.32

SCHAUBL, BABS (120740)
090419 1 Invoice ITINERANT MERCHANT R 09/04/2019 25.00 01.11.912.00

Total SCHAUBL, BABS (120740): 25.00

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
090519 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 09/05/2019 162.00 01.13.552.00

247-12564 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 08/28/2019 27.00 01.13.552.00
631 1 Invoice PANIC BUTTON REPAIR 08/22/2019 173.95 01.13.511.01

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 362.95

SENSUS USA INC. (287)
ZA19012492 1 Invoice METERS 08/22/2019 557.18 51.42.831.00

Total SENSUS USA INC. (287): 557.18

SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196)
1720143 1 Invoice FUEL 08/20/2019 27.75 01.41.655.00

Total SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196): 27.75

Page 58 of 60



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 8/27/2019 - 9/30/2019 Sep 05, 2019  10:39AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

STOPSTICK, LTD. (120637)
0015392 1 Invoice PIRANHA STOP STICKS 08/19/2019 298.00 01.21.830.04

Total STOPSTICK, LTD. (120637): 298.00

THOMPSON, CLARA & DAVID (120742)
090419 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 09/04/2019 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total THOMPSON, CLARA & DAVID (120742): 200.00

UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474)
63561 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/CHUCK 08/13/2019 178.49 01.21.471.15

63561-80 1 Invoice CREDIT 08/23/2019 85.90- 01.21.471.15

Total UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474): 92.59

US CELLULAR (92)
090419 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 09/04/2019 36.96 01.41.552.00
090419 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 09/04/2019 46.96 01.11.552.00
090419 3 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 09/04/2019 73.91 01.21.552.01
090419 4 Invoice HUNTINGTON/CELL PHO 09/04/2019 36.95 01.216.0
090419 5 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 09/04/2019 43.59 01.261.0
090419 6 Invoice POOL IPADS 09/04/2019 148.22 59.55.552.00
090419 7 Invoice MORAN/CELL PHONE 09/04/2019 19.00 01.261.0

Total US CELLULAR (92): 405.59

VAN METER INC. (141)
S010794195. 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTING 08/28/2019 1,334.70 01.41.514.11

Total VAN METER INC. (141): 1,334.70

VETERINARY ASSOCIATES SC (120691)
113711 1 Invoice VET BILL/HEKTOR 08/29/2019 66.40 01.21.814.06

Total VETERINARY ASSOCIATES SC (120691): 66.40

VINCENT EARTHMOVING (119808)
18056 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 08/23/2019 480.00 01.41.614.04

Total VINCENT EARTHMOVING (119808): 480.00

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
076233A 1 Invoice SOAT/DISPENSERS 08/13/2019 40.10 01.13.654.00
D076233 1 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 08/13/2019 263.96 01.13.511.07
D076234 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 08/13/2019 377.40 01.13.654.01

D076234A 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 08/13/2019 80.20 01.13.654.01
D076345 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 08/14/2019 52.77 01.13.654.00
D076346 1 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 08/14/2019 52.77 58.54.654.01

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 867.20

WERNER, JOHN J. (120073)
090419 1 Invoice ITINERANT MERCHANT R 09/04/2019 25.00 01.11.912.00

Page 59 of 60



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 8/27/2019 - 9/30/2019 Sep 05, 2019  10:39AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WERNER, JOHN J. (120073): 25.00

WEX BANK (119104)
090119 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 09/01/2019 842.43 01.41.655.00
090119 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 09/01/2019 227.99 17.52.655.03
090119 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 09/01/2019 1,424.13 01.21.655.00
090119 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 09/01/2019 65.80 01.46.655.00
090119 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 09/01/2019 286.29 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 2,846.64

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
090119 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITOR 09/01/2019 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 110.00

WUEBBEN, TIM (119934)
082319 1 Invoice MEALS/TRAINING 08/23/2019 73.21 01.21.562.00

Total WUEBBEN, TIM (119934): 73.21

Grand Totals: 89,061.85

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 4091546
Vendor number hash - split: 5290113
Total number of invoices: 64
Total number of transactions: 89

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 89,061.85 89,061.85

Grand Totals: 89,061.85 89,061.85

Page 60 of 60


	00.00 Agenda 09.09.19
	01.0369 Minutes cc082619
	01.0370 Scarecrow Event
	02.0371 Budget Amendment BA20-05
	BA20-05
	Master List FY20

	03.0373 Backflow Bids
	04.0357 Cannabis Tax Ordinance
	05.0374 624 Spring Street Rezoning
	19A-03 Trebian Rezoning Request
	cal no 19A-03 Trebian Rezone

	06.0375 Water Tower Study
	07.0376 Warrants 09.09.19



